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14 November 2024 
 

Tracey Viera 
President 
Screen Producers Association of Australia 

Sent via email: info@screenproducers.org.au 

 CC: smilgate@daley.com.au 

 

Dear Tracey Viera 
 

Screen Producers Association of Australia 
Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2024 – FR2024/154 

 
I acknowledge receipt of the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2024 for the Screen Producers 
Association of Australia (the reporting unit).  The documents were lodged with the Fair Work Commission (the 
Commission) on 12 November 2024. 

The financial report has now been filed. You are not required to take any further action in respect of the 
report lodged.   

The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This involved confirming that the financial reporting 
timelines required under sections 253, 265, 266 and 268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
(RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required under section 268 of the RO Act were lodged and that 
various disclosure requirements under the Australian Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines 
have been complied with.  A primary review does not examine all disclosure requirements. 

Please note that next year’s financial report may be subject to an advanced compliance review. 

Reporting Requirements 

The Commission’s website provides a number of factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process and 
associated timelines.  The website also contains the section 253 reporting guidelines and a model set of 
financial statements. 

The Commission recommends that reporting units use these model financial statements to assist in complying 
with the RO Act, the section 253 reporting guidelines and Australian Accounting Standards.  Access to this 
information is available via this link. 

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please call 1300 341 665 or email regorgs@fwc.gov.au. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Fair Work Commission 

Fair Work 
Commission 

\ 
\ 

Fair Work 
Commission 

\ 
\ 



Screen Producers Association of Australia 
s.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

Certificate by prescribed designated officer1 
For the year ended 30 June 2024 

 

I, Tracey Vieira, being the President of the Screen Producers Association of Australia (“the 
Association”) certify:  

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full audited and narrative 
report for the Association for the period ended referred to in s.268 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and  
 

• that the audited report was passed by the Committee of Management, the first 
meeting, on 14 October 2024 
 

• that the full audited and narrative report was provided to members of “the 
Association” on 23 October 2024 via the Association’s website; and 
 

• that the full report was presented to a general meeting of members of “the 
Association” (the Annual General Meeting) on 12 November 2024 in accordance 
with s.266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 
 

 
Signature of prescribed designated officer:  

 

Name of prescribed designated officer: Tracey Vieira 

Title of prescribed designated officer: President 

Dated: 12 November 2024 

 

 
1 Regulation 162 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 defines a ‘prescribed designated officer’ of a 

reporting unit for the purposes of s.268(c) as: 
 (a)  the secretary; or 
 (b)  an officer of the organisation other than the secretary who is authorised by the organisation or by the rules of the 

organisation to sign the certificate mentioned in that paragraph. 

V J V 
.. -- 
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ABOUT

Screen  Producers  Aust ra l ia  (SPA)  i s
the  peak  indust ry  and  t rade  body
suppor t ing  the  in te res ts  o f  over  750
screen  bus inesses ,  both  la rge  and
smal l ,  in  the i r  p roduct ion  o f  sc reen
stor ies  across  a l l  genres  and  fo rmats .  

Every  year  our  member  bus inesses
suppor t  thousands  o f  ro les  and
generate  b i l l i ons  in  p roduct ion  revenue
–  o f fe r ing  a  s ign i f icant  cont r ibut ion  to
the  Aust ra l ian  economy.

On beha l f  o f  our  member  bus inesses ,
we  are  focused  on  de l i ver ing  a  hea l thy
commerc ia l  env i ronment  th rough
ongo ing  engagement  w i th
broadcasters ,  d i s t r ibutors ,  the
government ,  the  un ion ,  and  o ther
screen  organ isat ions .

Th is  coord inated  d ia logue  ensures  that
our  indust ry  i s  successfu l ,  employment
leve ls  a re  s t rong  and  the  communi ty ’ s
expectat ions  o f  access  to  h igh-qua l i ty
Aust ra l ian  content  have  been  met .  

SPA has  a  number  o f  governance
resources  ava i lab le  fo r  counc i l lo rs  and
members  inc lud ing  a  Conf l i c t  o f
In te res t  Po l icy ,  E th ica l  P ract ice  Po l icy ,
Membersh ip  Terms  and  Cond i t ions ,
Negot ia t ing  Commit tee  Protoco l ,  and
Pr ivacy  Po l icy .  SPA i s  a l so  a  member
of  the  Screen  D ivers i ty  &  Inc lus ion
Network  (SDIN)  and  par tner  to  the
Screen  Indust ry  Code  of  Pract ice ,
a longs ide  the  MEAA,  ava i lab le  a t
www.screensafety .com.au .
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I t  has  been  an  exc i t ing  and  t ransformat ive
year  fo r  Aust ra l ian  screen  indust ry  w i th
many  cha l lenges  be ing  faced  by  loca l
p roducers  in  a  g loba l  market  under  p ressure .
Over  the  past  12  months ,  we ’ve  seen
remarkab le  homegrown content  that  not  on ly
cont inues  to  capt iva te  loca l  aud iences  but
a lso  garners  in te rnat iona l  acc la im,  such  as
Boy  Swa l lows  Un iverse  and  Co l in  f rom
Accounts .  

There  have  been  laugh  out  loud  comedies ,
compel l ing  drama ser ies ,  innovat ive  f i lms ,
factua l  ser ies  and  features  and  an imated
works .  Aust ra l ian  s tor ies  cont inue  to
showcase  the  immense  ta lent  and  c reat iv i ty
w i th in  our  indust ry .  These  successes  speak
to  the  res i l i ence  and  v is ion  o f  our  p roducers ,
wr i te rs ,  d i rectors ,  and  c rews  who  cont inue
to  push  boundar ies ,  e levat ing  the  prof i le  o f
Aust ra l ian  s tory te l l ing .

One  of  the  h igh l ights  th is  year  was  the
SCREEN FOREVER conference,  wh ich
brought  together  an  incred ib le  a r ray  o f
ta lent ,  indust ry  leaders ,  and  v is ionar ies .
The  energy  and  pass ion  d isp layed  across
the  sess ions  underscored  the  s t rength  and
v ibrancy  o f  our  c reat ive  communi ty .  

The  conference  has  t ru ly  become the  market
for  the  indust ry  w i th  meet ings  in  every  nook
and  c ranny  across  the  venue  resu l t ing  in
new par tnersh ips  both  loca l l y  and  g loba l ly
between  a t tendees .  I  ex tend  my  hear t fe l t
thanks  to  the  team beh ind  SCREEN
FOREVER and  our  ded icated  members  fo r
the i r  inva luab le  cont r ibut ions  to  mak ing  th is
event  a  resound ing  success .  Your
commitment  and  enthus iasm cont inue  to  be
the  backbone  of  our  ach ievements .  
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However ,  i t  i s  impor tant  to  acknowledge  the
s ign i f icant  cha l lenges  we  face  as  an
indust ry ,  par t icu la r ly  in  the  ongo ing  bat t le  to
secure  fa i r  and  mean ingfu l  regu la t ion  fo r
s t reaming  p la t fo rms  operat ing  in  Aust ra l ia .
Whi le  s t reaming  serv ices  have  opened  new
avenues  fo r  content  c reators ,  the  lack  o f
regu la tory  suppor t  to  ensure  that  Aust ra l ian
producers  and  s tor ies  rece ive  adequate
investment  remains  a  p ress ing  concern .  

We have  been  act ive ly  advocat ing  fo r
s t ronger  s t reaming  quotas  and  po l ic ies  that
re f lec t  the  c r i t i ca l  ro le  that  loca l  content
p lays  in  shap ing  our  nat iona l  ident i ty  and
suppor t ing  the  l i ve l ihood  of  Aust ra l ian
creators .  The  road  ahead  w i l l  requ i re
cont inued  co l laborat ion ,  advocacy ,  and
res i l i ence  f rom a l l  o f  us .

As  we  look  fo rward  to  the  coming  year ,  we
remain  focused  on  s t rengthen ing  the
foundat ions  o f  Aust ra l ian  f i lm  and  te lev is ion .
Together ,  we  w i l l  cont inue  to  champion  the
d iverse  vo ices  that  make  our  indust ry  so
un ique ,  wh i le  ensur ing  that  p roducers  have
the  too ls ,  resources ,  and  suppor t  to  th r i ve  in
an  ever -evo lv ing  landscape .

I  want  to  acknowledge  the  Counc i l  and
Adv isors  who  vo lunteer  the i r  t ime  to  be  the
representat ives  o f  our  d iverse  membersh ip .
Your  pass ion  and  t ime  i s  t ru ly  va lued  and
our  o rgan isat ion  i s  bet te r  fo r  your
invo lvement .  

Mat t ,  G lenn,  Zoe,  Andy ,  Brad ,  Jane ,  James,
Jess ica ,  A idan ,  Sam,  Sharmin i ,  Chrysa ,  Bee
and  a l l  beh ind  the  scenes  –  a  mass ive  thank
you  once  aga in  fo r  your  ded icat ion ,  hard
work ,  and  unwaver ing  pass ion .  We look
forward  to  bu i ld ing  on  our  successes  and
tack l ing  the  cha l lenges  ahead  as  a  un i ted
and  res i l i ent  indust ry .

-  T r a c e y  V i e i r a ,  P r e s i d e n t  2 0 2 3 / 2 4
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COUNCIL
We are  governed  by  an  e lected  counc i l  and  appo in ted  adv isors .  Our  e lect ions  a re  he ld  annua l ly
w i th  indust ry  leaders  se lected  f rom across  the  feature  f i lm,  te lev is ion  and  immers ive  med ia
sectors .

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 3 / 2 4

WWW.SCREENPRODUCERS.ORG.AU 8

L I S A  S C O T T

C O U N C I L L O R

S T E P H A N I E  D O W E R

A D V I S O R  T O  C O U N C I L

K U R T  R O Y A

A d v i s o r  t o  C o u

T R A C E Y  V I E I R A

P R E S I D E N T

S U Z A N N E  R Y A N

V I C E  P R E S I D E N T

T S U  S H A N  C H A M B E R S

C O U N C I L L O R

V E R O N I C A  F U R Y

C O U N C I L L O R

G R E G  W O O D S

C O U N C I L L O R

K E V I N  W H Y T E

A D V I S O R  T O  C O U N C I L

A I M E E  H U X L E Y

D I V E R S I T Y  M E N T O R S H I P

S C H E M E  P A R T I C I P A N T

INTRODUCTION

K Y L I E  M U N N I C H

C O U N C I L L O R

( U N T I L  M A Y  2 0 2 4 )



MATTHEW DEANER, SPA, KYAS HEPWORTH, SCREEN NSW, AND 
TRACEY VEIRIA, HOODLUM ENTERTAINMENT, SCREEN FOREVER 38 

EMMA FITZSIMONS, PRINCESS PICTURES, AND 
SUZANNE RYAN, SLR PRODUCTIONS, SCREEN FOREVER 38 

SPAAWAR 

#SPAAWARD 

.L. ,--�--' 

1..- .-° 
KAYLENE BUTLER, STEPHANIE DOWER AND LEONIE KELLY, 

SPA AWARDS 

■ANNUAL 

AWARDS MAKE IT 
AUSTRALIAN 

MAKE IT 
AUSTRALIAN 

lue srots o see e 
mskeitustrelen.com '_l'.. 

y- MP" ,a 
l_' '_? , h 

,a <10' . 
ii .n. 

VERONICA FURY, WILDBEAR ENTERTAINMENT AND SCOTT 
HOWARD, ENDEMOL SHINE, SCREEN STORIES 2023 

JACQUI FEENEY, SCREEN QUEENSLAND, MATTHEW DEANER, SCREEN PRODUCERS AUSTRALIA, MAYOR TOM TATE, CITY OF GOLD 
COAST & TRACEY VIEIRA, HOODLUM ENTERTAINMENT / SCREEN PRODUCERS AUSTRALIA PRESIDENT 

MATTHEW DEANER, SPA, KYAS HEPWORTH, SCREEN NSW, AND 
TRACEY VEIRIA, HOODLUM ENTERTAINMENT, SCREEN FOREVER 38 

'e 1 
EMMA FITZSIMONS, PRINCESS PICTURES, AND 

SUZANNE RYAN, SLR PRODUCTIONS, SCREEN FOREVER 38 

■ANNUAL 

AWARDS 
pAAWAR 

#SPAAWARD 



CEO'S REPORT

WWW.SCREENPRODUCERS.ORG.AU

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 3 / 2 4

Let  me beg in  by  extend ing  a  hear t fe l t  thank
you  to  our  e lected  SPA Counc i l lo rs  and
Adv isors  fo r  the i r  cont inued  gu idance  and
leadersh ip  o f  the  o rgan isat ion ,  w i th  a  spec ia l
ment ion  to  Tracey  V ie i ra ,  our  Pres ident ,  and
Suzanne  Ryan,  our  V ice  Pres ident .  The i r
commitment  and  s t ra teg ic  fo res ight  have
he lped  s teer  SPA through  another
t ransformat ive  year  fo r  the  screen  indust ry .
Ba lanc ing  the  demands  o f  the i r  own
bus inesses  a longs ide  the i r  ro les  a t  SPA i s  no
smal l  feat ,  and  the i r  cont r ibut ions  a re
cr i t i ca l  to  our  success .  

The  breadth  o f  SPA ’s  membersh ip ,  much  l i ke
the  d ivers i ty  w i th in  our  Counc i l ,  remains  one
of  our  g reates t  s t rengths .  F rom smal l
independent  p roducers  to  ma jor  g loba l
product ion  compan ies ,  SPA serves  the
in teres ts  o f  a l l  bus inesses  in  our  sc reen
sector .  We know that  these  bus inesses  a re ,
a t  the i r  core ,  d r i ven  by  the  peop le  w i th in
them—peop le  l i ke  you .  Our  members '
ded icat ion ,  c reat iv i ty ,  and  hard  work  a re
what  fue l  the  Aust ra l ian  screen  indust ry ’ s
success  on  the  g loba l  s tage .   

Our  shared  goa l  i s  c lear :  to  champion
Aust ra l ian  s tor ies ,  ta lent ,  and  IP ,  both
loca l l y  and  g loba l ly .  The  advocacy ,
indust r ia l  suppor t ,  and  network ing  that  SPA
prov ides  a re  des igned  to  he lp  members  f ind
the i r  foot ing  and  th r ive  w i th in  an  ever -
evo lv ing  g loba l  indust ry .  

The  po l icy  team has  been  re lent less  in
dr iv ing  campa igns  that  sa feguard  the  fu ture
of  the  Aust ra l ian  screen  indust ry  th is  year .
The i r  t i re less  advocacy  has  kept  key  i ssues
f ront  and  cent re  w i th  government  and
stakeho lders .  Most  notab ly ,  SPA cont inued
to  push  fo r  the  long-promised  regu la t ion  o f
s t reaming  serv ices—a move  that  wou ld
so l id i fy  a  susta inab le  fu ture  fo r  loca l  sc reen
content .  A l though  th is  remains  a  work  in
progress ,  our  work  in  th is  a rea  has  bu i l t  on
inva luab le  momentum.  

Moreover ,  SPA jo ined  fo rces  w i th  a lmost  30
screen-produc ing  organ isat ions  f rom around
the  wor ld  to  re lease  a  jo in t  s ta tement
push ing  fo r  g reater  p rotect ion  o f  sc reen  IP
for  independent  p roducers ,  mak ing  a  s t rong
g loba l  case  fo r  loca l  ownersh ip  o f  c reat ive
content .  The  10th  Make  i t  Aust ra l ian  event
at  Par l iament  House ,  in  par tnersh ip  w i th
MEAA,  ADG,  and  AWG,  fo l lowed by  our
Screen  Stor ies  d inner ,  in  par tnersh ip  w i th
Media  Super ,  b rought  a t tent ion  to  th is
press ing  i ssue ,  fu r ther  under l in ing  our
commitment  to  ensur ing  that  Aust ra l ian  IP
remains  in  Aust ra l ian  hands .  

Add i t iona l l y ,  the  po l icy  team has  nav igated
s ign i f icant  sh i f ts  across  our  Of fsets ,
nav igat ing  A I ’ s  g rowing  ro le  in  the  indust ry ,
and  engag ing  w i th  members  on  v i ta l  re forms
-  a l l  w i th  the  a im of  secur ing  a  s t ronger ,
more  res i l i ent  sc reen  indust ry .
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Simi la r ly ,  SPA ’s  indust r ia l  team has  been  a t
the  coa l face ,  p rov id ing  da i l y  suppor t  to
members  nav igat ing  a  rap id ly  chang ing
product ion  and  commerc ia l  l andscape .  F rom
adv is ing  on  g loba l  i ssues  such  as  the
momentous  SAG-AFTRA s t r ike  that  b rought
product ion  in  the  US to  a  months ’  long  ha l t ,
to  loca l  top ics  inc lud ing  ABC's  expanded
r ights  c la ims ,  changes  to  l i cence  fees ,  and
wage  rev iews ,  address ing  our  members ’
indust r ia l  mat te rs  a re  a t  the  hear t  o f  what
we do .  

On  the  events  f ront ,  SPA de l i vered  numerous
educat iona l  and  network ing  oppor tun i t ies
that  connected  producers ,  f inanc ie rs ,  and
key  s takeho lders .  The  Screen  Bus iness
Essent ia l s  course ,  in  par tnersh ip  w i th
AFTRS,  remained  a  corners tone  o f
profess iona l  deve lopment ,  equ ipp ing
producers  w i th  the  fundamenta l  knowledge
they  need  to  succeed.  Add i t iona l l y ,  SPA
int roduced  the  Nav igat ing  Growth  course  to
suppor t  p roducers  in  manag ing  and
expand ing  the i r  p ro jects  e f fect ive ly .  

Th is  year ’ s  SPA Masterc lasses  de lved  in to
cruc ia l  top ics ,  inc lud ing  theat r ica l
d is t r ibut ion ;  A I  and  copyr ight ;  and  the
Producer  Of fset—ensur ing  our  members  have
the  ins ights  needed  to  nav igate  an
increas ing ly  complex  screen  landscape .  

Our  f lagsh ip  event ,  SCREEN FOREVER,
cont inues  to  serve  as  Aust ra l ia ’ s  p remier
gather ing  fo r  the  screen  indust ry ,  b r ing ing
together  p rofess iona ls  f rom across  the
g lobe  to  d iscuss ,  debate ,  and  ce lebrate  the
ach ievements  o f  our  sector .  Meanwhi le ,  the
Screen  Producers  Aust ra l ia  Awards
recogn ised  and  ce lebrated  the  ext raord inary
ta lent  and  c reat iv i ty  that  d r i ve  Aust ra l ian
screen  s tor ies  to  the  wor ld  s tage .  

In  c los ing ,  I  want  to  express  my  s incere
grat i tude  to  the  SPA team for  the i r
unwaver ing  ded icat ion  and  hard  work .  The i r
commitment ,  energy ,  and  pass ion  fo r  what
we do  have  been  p ivota l  in  SPA ’s  ab i l i t y  to
suppor t  our  members  and  the  broader
indust ry .   

To  our  members ,  thank  you  fo r  your
cont inued  engagement  and  t rus t  in  SPA.
Your  cont r ibut ions  a re  what  make  our
indust ry  v ib rant ,  res i l i ent ,  and  innovat ive .
Be ing  un i ted  i s  c r i t i ca l  to  ach ieve  and
advance  our  shared  goa ls .  

As  we  look  ahead,  we  remain  commit ted  to
champion ing  the  vo ices  and  s tor ies  that
def ine  Aust ra l ia ’ s  p lace  in  the  g loba l  sc reen
landscape .  The  cha l lenges  a re  many,  but  so
too  a re  the  oppor tun i t ies .  Here ’s  to  another
great  year  fo r  SPA and  the  Aust ra l ian
screen  indust ry .  

-   M a t t h e w  D e a n e r ,  C E O

INTRODUCTION



STAFF
Our  team is  made  up  o f  a  range  of  exper ienced  and  pass ionate  execut ives  and  c reat ives  w i th
d iverse  backgrounds  f rom across  the  screen  indust ry .

M A T T H E W  D E A N E R
C E O

G L E N N  H A M I L T O N

C O O

J A M E S  M A L C O L M

C F O  ( C O N S U L T A N T )

J A N E  M U L L I G A N

P o l i c y  ( P T )
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I N C L U S I O N

A N D Y  B A R C L A Y

B U S I N E S S ,  L E G A L

A F F A I R S

J E S S I C A  G I A C C O
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Our  team is  made  up  o f  a  range  of  exper ienced  and  pass ionate  execut ives  and  c reat ives  w i th
d iverse  backgrounds  f rom across  the  screen  indust ry .
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Thank  you  to  a l l  o f  our  par tners  fo r  suppor t ing  our  events  and  in i t ia t i ves  across  the  year .
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SPA’s  po l icy  team bu i lds  s t ra teg ic
a l l i ances  and  engages  d i rect ly
w i th  members ,  government  and
indust ry  co l leagues  to  deve lop
and  suppor t  campa igns  on  c r i t i ca l
i ssues  impact ing  the  screen
indust ry .  

As  par t  o f  these  campa igns ,  we
host  events  w i th  Par l iamentar ians
and  key  dec is ion  makers ,  wr i te
and  present  submiss ions  to
re levant  inqu i r ies ,  and  engage
act ive ly  w i th  the  med ia .

The  pr inc ipa l  focus  fo r  SPA over
the  past  year  has  been  work ing  to
he lp  f ina l i se  long-awa i ted
st reaming  regu la t ion ,  as  p romised
to  indust ry  by  the  Aust ra l ian
Government .  Unfor tunate ly ,  th i s
remains  a  work  in  p rogress .  

In  fu r therance  o f  our  goa l  o f
bu i ld ing  s t ra teg ic  a l l i ances ,  in
January ,  SPA jo ined  fo rces  w i th
screen-produc ing  organ isat ions
around  the  wor ld  to  re lease  a
s ta tement  recogn is ing  the  need
for  governments  to  take  act ion  to
ensure  va luab le  screen  IP  i s
re ta ined  in  the  hands  o f
independent  sc reen  producers .

The  protect ion  o f  loca l  IP  was
a lso  the  focus  o f  the  annua l  Make
i t  Aust ra l ian  event  a t  Par l iament
House ,  he ld  in  par tnersh ip  w i th
the  MEAA,  ADG and  AWG in  2023.

Other  c r i t i ca l  i ssues  addressed
th is  year  were  the  two  s ign i f icant
changes  to  the  Locat ion  and
Producer  Of fsets ,  g rowing
ut i l i sa t ion  o f  A I ,  the  ongo ing
reforms  to  the  EMDG program,
and  s ta te-based  screen
st ra teg ies .

INTRODUCTION
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The screen  indust ry  cont inues  to  awa i t
f ina l i sa t ion  o f  Aust ra l ian  Government
leg is la t ion  to  regu la te  s t reaming  p la t fo rms,
promised  to  commence  on  1  Ju ly  2024.

SPA has  engaged  w i th  Government  po l icy
proposa ls  and  var ious  fo rums  to  advocate
for  the  in te res ts  o f  independent  p roducers
and  the  indust ry .  For  example ,  in  Apr i l ,  SPA
appeared  before  the  Senate  Env i ronment
and  Communicat ions  References  Commit tee
Inqu i ry  in to  the  Nat iona l  Cu l tu ra l  Po l icy .
SPA used  th is  oppor tun i ty  to  re i te ra te  the
need  fo r  the  Government  to  move  ahead
wi th  robust  regu la t ion  o f  s t reaming
p la t fo rms  and  h igh l ighted  that  uncer ta in ty
around  th is  was  c reat ing  anx ie ty  across  th is
indust ry  and  i s  ev ident  th rough  f reezes  in
commiss ion ing .  

STREAMING

REGULATION
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The pace  o f  re form has  s lowed in  par t  due
to  the   Aust ra l ia -Un i ted  Sta tes  F ree  Trade
Agreement  (AUSFTA)  be ing  weapon ised  in
an  a t tempt  to  generate  obstac les  to  what
are  ob ject ive ly  fa i r  outcomes  fo r  our  sector
and  fo r  the  Aust ra l ian  pub l ic  but  we  remain
opt im is t ic  as  to  a  pos i t i ve  outcome.
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I n  January  2024,  SPA was
p leased  to  lead  an
unprecedented  in te rnat iona l
co l laborat ion  w i th  screen-
produc ing  organ isat ions
around  the  wor ld  to  re lease  a
jo in t  s ta tement  that  recogn ises
the  need  fo r  governments  to
take  act ion  to  ensure  va luab le
screen  IP  i s  re ta ined  in  the
hands  o f  independent  sc reen
producers .

The  s ta tement  underscores  the
cu l tu ra l  and  economic
impor tance  o f  loca l
s tory te l l ing ,  recogn is ing  th is
as  a  s t ra teg ic  nat iona l  asset  to
be  cher i shed  and  protected .
The  commitment  extends  to
ensur ing  that  loca l  aud iences
have  access  to  a  d iverse  range
of  newly  c reated  loca l  s to r ies
across  a l l  p la t fo rms .  

The  s ta tement  was  suppor ted
by  over  20  organ isat ions ,
inc lud ing  Screen  Producers
I re land  ( I re land) ,  Canad ian
Media  Producers  Assoc ia t ion
(Canada) ,  The  European
Producers  C lub  (EU) ,  Ibero-
Amer ican  Federat ion  o f  F i lm
and  Aud iov isua l  P roducers
(LatAM)  and  Assoc iaz ione
Produt tor i  Aud iov is iv i  ( I ta ly ) .

SPA was  voca l  in  tak ing  the
sta tement  to  med ia ,
par t ic ipat ing  in  on l ine ,  TV,
rad io ,  and  podcast  in te rv iews .
Examples  o f  med ia  coverage
inc lude  ABC News,  The
Guard ian ,  Dead l ine ,    
Mumbre l la ,  C21  Med ia ,  The
Da i ly  Aus ,  and  K idscreen .

We cont inue  to  work  w i th  our
brother  and  s i s te r
organ isat ions  on  cont inued
advocacy .
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On 17  October  2023,  SPA a longs ide  the
MEAA,  ADG,  and  AWG headed  to  Par l iament
House  fo r  the  10th  Make  i t  Aust ra l ian  event
to  lobby  key  Par l iamentar ians  on  the
impor tance  o f  s t reaming  regu la t ion ,  and  the
protect ion  o f  loca l  Aust ra l ian  content  and
in te l lec tua l  p roper ty .

A  de legat ion  o f  sma l l  bus iness  c reat ive
workers  beh ind  and  in  f ront  o f  the  camera
inc lud ing  Dar ren  Ashton  (D i rector ) ,  Tony
Ayres  (Producer ) ,  Shane  Brennan
(Showrunner ) ,  F iona  Donovon  (Product ion
Des igner ) ,  Antony  Par tos  (Composer ) ,  T racey
Rober tson  (Producer ) ,  and  Fred  Schep is i
(D i rector )  showcased  the  sector  w i th  some
tak ing  par t  in  a  rous ing  pane l  d i scuss ing  how
the  Aust ra l ian  government  shou ld  and  cou ld
take  s teps  to  sa feguard  Aust ra l ian  screen
stor ies  and  in te l lec tua l  p roper ty .  

A  number  o f  key  par l iamentar ians  were  in
at tendance,  inc lud ing  the  Hon  Miche l le
Rowland  MP,  Ms  Zoe  Dan ie l  MP,  Ms  Susan
Templeman MP,  Senator  Per in  Davey ,  Mr
Luke  Gos l ing  OAM,  MP,  and  Senator  Sarah
Hanson-Young.

The  event  garnered  s ign i f icant  med ia
coverage  and  ampl i f ied  Make  I t  Aust ra l ian 's
message  that  Aust ra l ia  shou ld  fo l low the  lead
of  o ther  key  markets ,  such  as  the  UK,
Europe,  and  Canada,  wh ich  a re  p r io r i t i s ing
the  protect ion  o f  IP ,  and  those  that  a re
regu la t ing  investment  by  s t reaming
p la t fo rms '  cont r ibut ion  to  c reat ive  indust r ies
in  the i r  loca l  markets .

MAKE IT
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From 20-26 May  2024,  SPA
ce lebrated  Aust ra l ian  Made
Week,  an  annua l  ce lebrat ion  o f
a l l  that  Aust ra l ia  and  Aust ra l ians
create .

Wi th  the  Federa l  Government
ca l l ing  fo r  a  fu ture  “Made  in
Aust ra l ia ”  fo r  the  manufactur ing
sector ,  Aust ra l ian  Made  Week
was  the  per fect  oppor tun i ty  to
app ly  the  same agenda  to
Aust ra l ia ’ s  c reat ive  indust r ies .
We cannot  have  a  s t rong  fu ture
in  manufactur ing  w i thout
invest ing  in  our  c reat ive  sk i l l s ,
inc lud ing  des ign  th ink ing ,
techno log ica l  adaptat ion ,  and
systems  th ink ing .  

SPA's  campa ign  v ideo  ran  across
c inema screens  nat ionwide ,
h igh l ight ing   the  te r r i f i c
cont r ibut ion  our  indust ry  has
made to  our  nat ion ’s  cu l tu ra l
s to ry te l l ing ,  employment  and
economic  va lue .  

We a lso  deta i led  the  impact  that
recent  member  p roduct ions  have
had  on  communi t ies  a round
Aust ra l ia  -  f rom Canber ra  to
Coober  Pedy ,  and  Me lbourne  to
Mi t tagong  -  on  soc ia l  med ia ,
w i th  a  number  o f  p rominent
indust ry  leaders  lend ing  the i r
suppor t  to  the  campa ign .

2 1
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SPA and  our  members  work  w i th  s ta te  and
ter r i to ry  governments  across  the  year .  Ma jor
h igh l ights  f rom 23/24 inc lude :

T a s  I s l a n d  S c r e e n  I n c e n t i v e

I n  May  2024,  SPA app lauded  Screen
Tasmania  on  the  new Is land  Screen  Incent ive ,
des igned  to  a t t ract  non-Tasman ian  screen
product ions  to  f i lm  in  the  s ta te .  The
incent ive  w i l l  he lp  bu i ld  the  loca l  indust ry
wh i le  enab l ing  producers  to  work  w i th  the
wea l th  o f  loca l  s to r ies  and  ta lent  wh i le
h igh l ight ing  un ique  Tasman ian  landscapes ,
h is to ry ,  her i tage  and  cu l tu re .

W A  S c r e e n  S t r a t e g y  

Also  in  May,  SPA we lcomed the  re lease  las t
week  of  the  Western  Aust ra l ian  Screen
Indust ry  St ra tegy  2024-34,  not ing  that  the
re lease  o f  the  s t ra tegy  i s  a  we lcome
acknowledgement  o f  the  economic
impor tance  o f  the  screen  indust ry  as  an
impor tant  and  h igh-va lue  fu ture  sector  fo r
WA.

In  par t icu la r ,  SPA noted  that  the  s t ra tegy
recogn ises  that  deve lopment  and  product ion
fund ing  i s  needed  to  ensure  that  in te l lec tua l
proper ty  i s  c reated  and  owned in  WA as  we l l
as  the  impor tance  o f  bu i ld ing  capac i ty  in  the
sector  th rough  a  workforce  p lan  and  that  th is
shou ld  focus  on  the  c r i t i ca l  “be low- the- l ine”
jobs  fo r  sc reen  c rew.  

N S W  C r e a t i v e  I n d u s t r i e s  S t r a t e g y  

The fo l low ing  month ,  SPA we lcomed the
commitment  to  the  ongo ing  suppor t  fo r  the
“Made  in  NSW”  program and  rebates  fo r
D ig i ta l  Games  and  PDV made  in  the  NSW
State  Budget .  SPA i s  eager ly  awa i t ing  the
re lease  o f  the  3-year  NSW Screen  and  D ig i ta l
Games  St ra tegy ,  that  we  hope  w i l l  p rov ide
some key  deta i l  a round  fu l f i l l i ng  the
impor tant  commitment  made  to  indust ry  in
the  Creat ive  Communi t ies  po l icy .

State & Territory

Engagement
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Some impor tant  changes  were  made  to
screen  indust ry  incent ives  in  2024.  F i rs t ,  the
above  the  l ine  cap  on  QAPE for  the  Producer
Of fset  was  removed  f rom 1  Ju ly  2024,
a l though  leg is la t i ve  e f fect  has  not  occur red .
Then,  in  Ju ly  2024,  Par l iament  f ina l l y  passed
two s ign i f icant  changes  to  the  Locat ion  and
Producer  Of fsets  that  had  been  announced  in
2023.

To  encourage  la rge-sca le  screen  product ions
to  f i lm  in  Aust ra l ia ,  the  Locat ion  Of fset   was
increased  f rom 16 .5% to  30%.  New
el ig ib i l i t y  requ i rements  were  a lso  in t roduced
requ i r ing  product ions  to  meet  min imum
tra in ing  ob l igat ions  o r  cont r ibute  to  the
broader  workforce  and  in f ras t ructure
capac i ty  o f  the  sector ,  and  use  one  or  more
Aust ra l ian  p rov iders  to  de l i ver  post -
product ion ,  d ig i ta l  and  v isua l  e f fects  fo r  the
product ion .  Th is  app l ies  re t rospect ive ly  to
e l ig ib le  p roduct ions  that  commenced  f i lm ing
on  or  a f te r  1  Ju ly  2023.

For  the  impor tant  Producer  Of fset ,  a  new
min imum expend i tu re  th resho ld  was
in t roduced  fo r  d rama ser ies  o f  $35 mi l l ion
per  season  in  qua l i fy ing  Aust ra l ian
product ion  expend i tu re  –  that  i s ,  expend i tu re
incur red  fo r  goods  and  serv ices  used  or
prov ided  in  Aust ra l ia .  Th is  app l ies  in  add i t ion
to  the  cur rent  per  hour  th resho ld  o f  $1
mi l l ion  o f  QAPE and  min imum of  $500,000
per  hour  expend i tu re .  

The  new Producer  Of fset  m in imum
expend i tu re  th resho ld  w i l l  app ly  to  d rama
ser ies  that  commence  f i lm ing  on  or  a f te r  1
Ju ly  2024.  Whi le  SPA we lcomed the  ma jor i ty
of  the  measures  -  par t icu la r ly  the  new
tra in ing  ob l igat ions  be ing  a t tached  to  the
Locat ion  Of fset  -  the  absence  of
commensurate  cer ta in ty  fo r  Aust ra l ian
pro jects  th rough  s t reaming  regu la t ion
cont inues  to  cause  great  angst  in  our
indust ry .

Whi le  suppor t ing  the  measures ,  SPA worked
t i re less ly  in  the  lead  up  to  the  leg is la t ion
pass ing  to  demonst ra te  to  Par l iament  that
get t ing  the  ba lance  r ight  between  back ing
in ternat iona l  p ro jects  and  ensur ing  aud ience
access  to  home-grown s tor ies  i s  c r i t i ca l  fo r
aud iences  to  exper ience  the i r  own cu l tu re
and  fo r  a  susta inab le  and  independent  fu ture
for  a l l  our  indust ry .

SPA a lso  h igh l ighted  the  need  to  re ta in  the
thresho ld  fo r  access  to  the  Locat ion  Of fset
a t  p ro jects  s ized  a t  $15m ra ther  than  $20m
so that  sma l le r  independent  in te rnat iona l
work  has  oppor tun i t ies  to  be  suppor ted  here .
We a lso  lobb ied  to  expand  the  o f fset  sys tem
to  bet te r  suppor t  documentary  content .

As  par t  o f  our  campa ign ing ,  CEO Mat thew
Deaner  and  Pres ident  Tracey  V ie i ra  (Hood lum
Enter ta inment ,  CEO)  p rov ided  ev idence
before  the  Senate  Economics  Commit tee  on
13  June  2024.

OFFSET CHANGES
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SUBMISSIONS

SPA act ive ly  engages  in  mak ing
submiss ions  to  par l iamentary  inqu i r ies  to
advocate  fo r  c ruc ia l  i ssues  that  impact
the  sector .  These  submiss ions  serve  as  a
v i ta l  channe l  th rough  wh ich  SPA can
vo ice  indust ry  concerns ,  p rov ide  exper t
ins ights ,  and  o f fe r  const ruct ive  so lu t ions
to  po l icymakers .  

By  par t ic ipat ing  in  these  inqu i r ies ,  SPA
not  on ly  ensures  that  the  un ique
cha l lenges  and  oppor tun i t ies  w i th in  the
screen  indust ry  a re  recogn ised  but  a l so
cont r ibutes  s ign i f icant ly  to  shap ing
po l ic ies  that  govern  the  sector .  

SPA made  the  fo l low ing  submiss ions  th is
year :

1 4  M a y  2 4  -  Submiss ion  to  the  Senate
Se lect  Commit tee  on  Adopt ing
Ar t i f i c ia l  In te l l igence  (A I )  
2 6  A p r  2 4  -  Submiss ion  to  the  Inqu i ry
in to  Treasury  Laws  Amendment
(De l i ver ing  Bet te r  F inanc ia l  Outcomes
and  Other  Measures )  B i l l  2024 
2 7  N o v  2 3  -  Targeted  Consu l ta t ion
Paper  -  Ref ined  Mode ls :  Consu l ta t ion
Response  Form (SPA on ly )  
2 7  N o v  2 3  -  Targeted  Consu l ta t ion
Paper  -  Ref ined  Mode ls :  Consu l ta t ion
Response  Form (SPA & MEAA)  
1 1  O c t  2 3  -  Submiss ion  to  the  Inqu i ry
in to  Promot ing  Economic  Dynamism,
Compet i t ion  and  Bus iness  Format ion  
2 6  S e p  2 3  -  Submiss ion  to  the  Inqu i ry
in to  the  Aust ra l ian  Government ’ s
Approach  to  Negot ia t ing  Trade  and
Investment  Agreements  
1 3  S e p  2 3  -  Submiss ion  to  the  Inqu i ry
in to  Aud iov isua l  Co-Product ion
Agreement  Between  the  Government  o f
Aust ra l ia  and  the  Government  o f  the
Repub l ic  o f  Ind ia
4  S e p  2 3  -  Submiss ion  to  the  Rev iew
of  Opt ions  to  Suppor t  the
Independence  of  the  Nat iona l
Broadcasters
3 1  A u g  2 3  -  Submiss ion  to  “A  New
Look  a t  Cu l tu re  -  Towards  the  Sta te ’ s
F i rs t  Ar ts ,  Cu l tu re  and  Creat ive
Indust r ies  Po l icy  
2 5  A u g  2 3  -  Submiss ion  to  the  EMDG
Refocus
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Surveys

SPA surveys  members  th roughout  the
year  to  gather  feedback  e i ther  d i rect ly  o r
on  beha l f  o f  our  par tners .  Thank  you  to
a l l  our  members  who  cont r ibuted  the i r
t ime  and  e f fo r t  to  complet ing  these
throughout  the  year .  Be low are  the  key
surveys  f rom 23/24:

A r t s  W o r k f o r c e  S u r v e y  ( S e r v i c e  a n d
C r e a t i v e  S k i l l s  A u s t r a l i a )  ( S a C S A )  -
Data  gather ing  to  in form adv ice  to  the
Depar tment  o f  Employment  Workp lace
Re la t ions  (DEWR)  on  t ra in ing  and  sk i l l s
deve lopment  needs  fo r  the  screen
sector .

S c r e e n  B u s i n e s s  S u p p o r t  S u r v e y  ( S P A )
-  Data  gather ing  to  ident i fy  t rends
between  screen  agenc ies  on  how they
suppor t  SPA members  in  the i r  c reat ive
and  commerc ia l  ambi t ions .

S t r e a m e r  C o m m i s s i o n i n g  P u l s e  S u r v e y
( S P A )  -  Data  gather ing  on  how loca l
and  g loba l  s t reamers  a re  cur rent ly
engag ing  w i th  Aust ra l ian  p roducers .
The  resu l ts  pa in t  a  b leak  p ic ture  o f  the
cur rent  commiss ion ing  landscape,  w i th
80% of  respondents  c i t ing  “Less”  o r
“Much  Less”  commiss ion ing  in te res t
f rom s t reaming  serv ices  compared  to
the  same t ime  las t  year .

F u t u r e  O f f s e t s  R e f o r m  S u r v e y  and
P r o p o s e d  C h a n g e s  t o  L o c a t i o n  a n d
P r o d u c e r  O f f s e t s  S u r v e y  ( S P A )  -  Data
gather ing  on  fu ture  a reas  fo r  re form
for  sc reen  o f fsets .

S t r e a m i n g  R e g u l a t i o n  M o d e l s  S u r v e y
( S P A )  -  Data  gather ing  to  in form SPA ’s
response  to  Government .

C o m m i s s i o n e r  S u r v e y  ( S P A )  -  Data
gather ing  to  bet te r  unders tand  the
cha l lenges  faced  by  producers  when
dea l ing  w i th  the  lead ing  commiss ion ing
p la t fo rms .  The  resu l ts  showed
dec l in ing  fa i rness  year -on-year ,
par t icu la r ly  f rom s t reamers ,  in  te rms  of
budgets ,  de l i verab les ,  and  te rms  of
t rade .

E v e n t  A t t e n d e e  S u r v e y s  ( V a r i o u s )
( S P A )  -  Feedback  gather ing  to  ensure
our  events  cont inue  to  meet  the  needs
of  the  Aust ra l ian  screen  indust ry .
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SPA’s  indust r ia l  team prov ides  da i l y
ass is tance  and  adv ice  to  members  on  a  w ide
range  of  p roduct ion ,  commerc ia l  and
indust r ia l  mat te rs .  We run  workshops
des igned  to  deve lop  exper t i se  amongst
emerg ing  producers  and  smal le r  member
bus inesses ,  convene  roundtab les  o f  key
stakeho lders ,  and  ho ld  a l l -o f - indust ry
seminars  on  the  lead ing  i ssues  conf ront ing
the  sector .  Cr i t i ca l l y ,  we  a lso  ma inta in  and
update  the  indust r ia l  f ramework  fo r  our
indust ry  in  con junct ion  w i th  the  key  un ions
represent ing  the  workforce .  

Key  indust r ia l  i ssues  that  SPA has  adv ised
members  on  th is  year  inc lude :

Increase  to  min imum l icence  fees
ABC expanded  r ights  c la ims
SAG-AFTRA St r ike  and  G loba l  Ru le  One
COVID P lans  t rans i t ion ing  to  normal
Annua l  wages  and  a l lowances  rev iew
Wr i te rs  and  unpa id  superannuat ion
New ru les  fo r  f i xed  te rm cont racts  
New ru les  fo r  p roduct ion  breaks
AI  adopt ion

I N D U S T R I A L  
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On Fr iday  14  Ju ly  2023,  SAG-
AFTRA dec la red  a  s t r ike  by  i t s
members  o f  a l l  se rv ices  under
the  SAG-AFTRA Agreements
that  cover  sc r ip ted  TV,  F i lm
and  New Med ia  p roduct ions .  

Th is  s t r ike  e f fect ive ly  b rought
the  US product ion  indust ry  to
a  s tandst i l l ,  and  reminded  us
here  in  Aust ra l ia  that  sc reen
is  a  g loba l  indust ry  and  the
r i se  o f  d ig i ta l  s t reaming
p la t fo rms  has  led  to
dras t ica l l y  changed  bus iness
pract ices  and,  increas ing ly ,  a
bat t le  about  who  owns  the
d i f fe rent  categor ies  o f
c reat ive  r ights ,  and  fo r  how
long,  and  who  gets  pa id  fo r
these .  

Notwi ths tand ing  that  most
‘Aust ra l ian ’  p roduct ions  fe l l
outs ide  the  s t r ike  o rder ,
ta lent  Agents  un i fo rmly
ins is ted  that  Producers  secure
wr i t ten  conf i rmat ion  f rom SAG
that  the i r  ac tors  cou ld  work
wi thout  be ing  in  v io la t ion  o f
the  s t r ike  o rder .  

SPA i ssued  member  adv isor ies
and  med ia  s ta tements  in  the
ear ly  days  o f  the  s t r ike  and
worked  a round  the  c lock  to
keep  Aust ra l ian  p roduct ions
mov ing .  SPA was  a lso  act ive
in  the  med ia  d iscuss ing  the
impl icat ions  o f  the  s t r ikes  on
the  Aust ra l ian  screen
indust ry .

Af te r  1 18  days ,  SAG-AFTRA
and AMPTP reached
agreement  and  the  US actors
s t r ike  was  ended.  

2 8
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I n  December  2023,  SPA  ce lebrated  the  f i r s t
ann iversary  o f  our  g roundbreak ing  e-
learn ing  course ,  Respect fu l  Workp laces .
Launched  in  December  2022,  th is  c ruc ia l
in i t ia t i ve  i s  des igned  to  fos ter  a  cu l tu re  o f
respect  and  inc lus ion  wh i le  reduc ing
ins tances  o f  harassment ,  d i sc r im inat ion ,  and
bu l ly ing  w i th in  the  dynamic  screen  indust ry .

In  the  wake  of  re launch ing  the  Nat iona l
Gu ide l ines  fo r  Screen  Safety  in  2021 ,  SPA
embarked  on  a  miss ion  to  c reate  a  sa fer
indust ry  that  a t t racts  and  re ta ins  top  ta lent .
The  Respect fu l  Workp laces  e- learn ing
course  has  been  a  corners tone  o f  th is
endeavour ,  b reak ing  down bar r ie rs  based  on
cu l tu ra l  d ivers i ty ,  sexua l  o r ienta t ion ,  and
more .  I t s  core  miss ion  i s  to  cu l t i va te  t rus t
and  respect  w i th in  the  screen  workp laces ,
re in forc ing  the  indust ry ' s  commitment  to
safeguard ing  i t s  workforce .

RESPECTFUL

WORKPLACES
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To date ,  over  1 ,200 workers  engaged  by
SPA member  compan ies  have  enro l led  in  the
t ra in ing ,  mark ing  an  impress ive  and  growing
co l lec t ive  ded icat ion  to  ensur ing  safe  and
respect fu l  workp laces .  Lead ing  product ion
compan ies  inc lud ing  Ambience
Enter ta inment ,  Goa lpost  P ic tures ,
Fremant le  Aust ra l ia ,  P r incess  P ic tures  and
Prospero  Product ions  have  adopted  the
t ra in ing  as  par t  o f  the i r  p roduct ion
personne l  onboard ing  lead ing  to  sa fer ,
more  respect fu l  workp laces .

Look ing  ahead,  SPA i s  work ing  towards
launch ing  a  suppor t ing  database  lookup
too l  that  w i l l  enab le  t rack ing  o f  course
complet ion .  Th is  w i l l  pave  the  way  fo r  an
indust ry  accred i ta t ion  sys tem,  set t ing  the
stage  fo r  the  deve lopment  o f  add i t iona l  e -
learn ing  modu les  to  fu r ther  enhance
indust ry  s tandards .

.WILDBEAR ENTERTAINMENT PUS GUARDIAN, THE PLATY THE PLATYPUS GUARDIAN, WILDBEAR ENTERTAINMENT 



The indust r ia l  agreements
managed  by  SPA are  be low.

Cast  and  c rew agreements
negot ia ted  w i th  the  MEAA:  

Mot ion  P ic ture
Product ion  Cer t i f ied
Agreement  (MPPCA)

Aust ra l ian  Feature  F i lm
Col lect ive  Agreement
(AFFCA)  and  the  Actors
Te lev is ion  Programs
Agreement  (ATPA)  –
covers  min imum pay  and
cond i t ions  fo r  feature
f i lms  and  te lev is ion ,
respect ive ly

Aust ra l ia  Te lev is ion
Repeats  and  Res idua ls
Agreement  2004 and
2016  (ATRRA)  –  covers
the  r ights  and  res idua ls
that  app ly  to  use  o f  an
actors ’  image  on  f ree-
to-a i r ,  Pay  TV,
s t reaming  content  and
f ree  on l ine  scr ip ted
content

Te lev is ion  An imat ion
Vo iceover  MOU 2022

Wr i te rs ’  agreements
negot ia ted  w i th  the
Aust ra l ian  Wr i te rs  Gu i ld
(AWG) :  

Ser ies  and  Ser ia l s
Agreement  (SASA)

Min iser ies  and
Te lemov ies  Agreement
(MATA)  

Ch i ld ren ’s  Te lev is ion
Agreement  (CTA)

3 0
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54K
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21
Events

5,700
Email Subscribers

382
Email Campaigns

Sent

30k
Website Visitors

408
Original Media

Mentions 
(Plus Thousands of

Syndications)



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 3 / 2 4

WWW.SCREENPRODUCERS.ORG.AU 33

SPA uses  a  var ie ty  o f  market ing  channe ls  to
communicate  w i th  our  members  and  the
broader  sc reen  indust ry  about  indust r ia l  and
po l icy  updates  and  events  to  he lp  es tab l i sh
and  sca le-up  a  susta inab le  screen  bus iness .  

E m a i l  m a r k e t i n g  i s  one  o f  our  core
communicat ions  channe ls ,  w i th  382
campaigns  sent  th is  f inanc ia l  year  to  a
database  o f  over  5 ,700 subscr ibers .  Content
of  these  emai l s  inc ludes  a  month ly  SPA
News le t te r ,  month ly  Member  Mat te rs ,  med ia
re leases ,  and  po l icy  and  indust r ia l  updates .
Open  ra tes  remained  s teady  a t  52 .12%,  on
par  w i th  52 .8% las t  year  and  we l l  above  the   
l a tes t  nonprof i t  indust ry  benchmark  o f
26.6%.  These  s ta ts  a re  a  tes tament  to  how
va luab le  t ime ly  and  author i ta t i ve
in format ion  on  po l icy  and  indust r ia l  i ssues
are  to  our  membersh ip .

The  SPA w e b s i t e  had  30k  v is i to rs  th is  year ,
who  per formed 76.4k  act ions  on  the  s i te .
Indust r ia l  agreements ,  membersh ip ,  events
and  news  remain  our  most  h igh  t ra f f ic
pages ,  suggest ing  that  SPA remains  an
author i ta t i ve  vo ice  fo r  the  indust ry ,  and
p lays  a  c ruc ia l  ro le  in  not  on ly  fac i l i ta t ing
members '  cur rent  da i l y  operat ions ,  but  a l so
the i r  ab i l i t y  to  up-sca le  and  bu i ld  a  robust
and  susta inab le  bus iness  in  the  fu ture .

MARKETING
CHANNELS

F ina l l y ,  s o c i a l  m e d i a  a l lows  us  to  reach  our
ta rget  aud ience  in  an  in forma l  and
conversat iona l  way ,  and  c reates  content
that  has  a  v i ra l ,  easy  to  share  qua l i ty  -
wh ich  i s  b r i l l i an t  fo r  d isseminat ing  c ruc ia l
in format ion  a t  sca le .

Fo l lowers  across  a l l  soc ia l  med ia  channe ls
remained  s teady  or  g rew las t  f inanc ia l  year ,
w i th  the  top  per forming  posts  re la t ing  to  the
22nd Annua l  SPA Awards ,  SCREEN
FOREVER 38 program,  and  po l icy  i ssues
such  as  the  Federa l  Budget  and  Make  i t
Aust ra l ian  campa ign .

A  summary  o f  each  p la t fo rm as  o f  30  June
2024 i s  as  fo l lows :

F a c e b o o k :  10 .4k  fo l lowers  |  775 posts  |
6k  engagements
T w i t t e r :  15 .4k  fo l lowers  |  803 posts  |  2 .7k
engagements
I n s t a g r a m :  6 .9k  fo l lowers  |  425 posts  |
7 .5k  engagements  
L i n k e d I n :  21 . 1k  fo l lowers  |  501  posts  |  10k
engagements

SPA cont inues  to  mon i to r  the  needs  o f  our
members ,  and  w i l l  cont inue  to  adapt  our
communicat ions  and  market ing  s t ra tegy  as
needed  to  meet  out  members  on  the
channe ls  they  a re  act ive ly  engag ing  on .

MARKETING
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MARKETING

www.screensafety.com.au www.makeitaustralian.com

www.savechildrenscontent.org www.screenforever.org.au
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We want Australian children dreaming Australian 
dreams. 

AUSTRALIA'S PREMIER SCREEN INDUSTRY EVENT 
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Thanks  to  a  s t rong  PR s t ra tegy
focused  on  garner ing  pub l ic  in te res t
and  suppor t  fo r  c ruc ia l  i ssues  faced
by  the  screen  indust ry ,  SPA
remained  prominent  in  Aust ra l ian
t rade  and  ma jor  met ro  med ia  in  the
past  f inanc ia l  year .  

In  to ta l ,  we  secured  in te rv iews  and
ment ions  in  hundreds  o f  p ieces  o f
coverage  across  TV,  p r in t ,  rad io  and
on l ine  pub l ica t ions .

The  two  key  p i l l a rs  o f  our  PR
st ra tegy  remained  to  be  SCREEN
FOREVER and  po l icy  in i t ia t i ves ,
ma in ly  the  regu la t ion  fo r  s t reaming
serv ices .

H igh l ights  o f  our  med ia  coverage  fo r
th is  year  inc lude  the  Guard ian
Aust ra l ia ,   The  I r i sh  T imes ,  ABC
Radio  Nat iona l ,  The  Da i ly  Aus ,  N ine
News Go ld  Coast ,  Seven  News  Go ld
Coast ,  Da i l y  Ma i l ,  Cr ikey ,  The
Aust ra l ian ,  and  The  Canber ra  T imes ,
as  we l l  as  loca l  and  in te rnat iona l
t rade  pub l ica t ions  such  as  C21
Media ,  Var ie ty ,  Dead l ine ,
Med iaweek,  K idscreen  and
Mumbre l la .

We were  proud  to  we lcome back  IF
Magaz ine  and  F i lm Ink  as  Of f ic ia l
Med ia  Par tners  o f  SCREEN
FOREVER.  We look  fo rward  to
work ing  c lose ly  w i th  our  Med ia
Par tners  in  the  coming  year  and
exp lor ing  o ther  par tnersh ip
oppor tun i t ies .
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EVENTS 

LOVE ME, WARNER BROS. INTERNATIONAL TELEVISION PRODUCTION AUSTRALIA 

EVENT 

LOVE ME, WARNER BROS. INTERNATIONAL TELEVISION PRODUCTION AUSTRALIA 



PITCH ON

DEMAND

Since  2021 ,  P i tch  on   Demand has
prov ided  producers  d i rect  access  to  key
dec is ion-makers  f rom lead ing
broadcasters  and  p la t fo rms  to  fas t - t rack
qua l i ty  Aust ra l ian  p ro jects .  Th is  year
Foxte l /B INGE,  App le  TV  and  Warner
Bros .  D iscovery  took  par t .

SPA members  o f  a l l  exper ience  leve ls
were  inv i ted  to  a t tend  on l ine  b r ie f ings
wi th  the  commiss ioners  then  submi t   
on l ine  p i tches  that  match  the  br ie fs .  The
best  on l ine  p i tches  secured  a  1 : 1  meet ing
wi th  the  re levant  commiss ioner .

A lmost  600 peop le  reg is te red  fo r  the
commiss ioner  b r ie f ings ,  and  275 p i tches
f rom 143  members  were  submi t ted .  The
fo l lowing  19  members  were  successfu l  in
secur ing  a   p i tch :  

A l e x  D y s o n  –  Spoon Fed  Product ions
A l i c e  W i l l i s o n  -  Rhapsody  F i lms  
D e c l a n  C a r u s o  -  Psychede l ia  F i lms
F r a n c i s c a  B r a i t h w a i t e  –  B lue  Spar row
Enter ta inment
G e o r g i a  M a p p i n  -  Haven ’ t  You  Done
Wel l  P roduct ions
H a n n a h  B r o o k s  –  S i l l y  Goose
Product ions
J a m e s  L i n g w o o d  –  L ingwood
Product ions

,
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GENR8 -  the  popu la r  one-day  ideas  fo rum
and network ing  event  -  re turned  on  16
August  2023,  p roud ly  suppor ted  by  Med ia
Super ,  RMIT  Un ivers i ty  and  V icScreen .

Over  160  de legates  and  speakers  f rom
mul t ip le  d isc ip l ines  gathered  in  Me lbourne   
and  on l ine  to  d issect  hot  top ics ,  inc lud ing
v i r tua l  p roduct ion ,  a r t i f i c ia l  in te l l igence
(A I ) ,  ex tended  rea l i ty  (XR) ,  and  share  the i r
exper iences  on  embrac ing  new
oppor tun i t ies  in  an  ever -evo lv ing  screen
indust ry .

De legates  a lso  had  the  oppor tun i ty  to
ming le  w i th  l i ke-minded  c reat ives  a t  the
Media  Super  Network ing  Hour  and  an
in forma l  Network ing  Soc ia l  a f te r  the
forum.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 3 / 2 4
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Speakers  inc luded :

R e g g i e  B a - P e  I I I ,  AWZA
N a t h a n  A n d e r s o n ,  New Canvas
P r o f  F a b i o  Z a m b e t t a ,  RMIT
M a t t  V i t i n s ,  Matchbox  P ic tures
S o p h i e  T a y l o r ,  NantStud ios
L e e n a  V a n  D e v e n t e r ,  Reuben  Games
P a u l  W i e g a r d ,  Madman Enter ta inment
M a t t h e w  D e a n e r ,  SPA

EVENTS



WEBINARS

SPA s t r i ves  to  p rov ide  our  members
and  suppor te rs  w i th  the  most  up- to-
date  in format ion ,  resources  and
adv ice  th rough  the  communicat ions
channe ls  on  wh ich  they  a re  most
act ive .  

Th is  year  we  hosted  a  ser ies  o f  l i ve
and  in te ract ive  web inars  to  exp la in
the  rami f ica t ions  o f  impor tant
po l icy  dec is ions  and  indust r ia l
a f fa i rs .

We a lso  hosted  quar te r ly  Member
Meet ings  to  d iscuss  i ssues  on  a
s ta te-by-s ta te  bas is .

The  top ics  covered  inc luded :

1 8  J u n  2 4  -  Agency  Suppor t
Survey  Resu l ts  Br ie f ing
1 2  J u n  2 4  -  Quar te r ly  SPA
Member  Meet ings
1 1  J u n  2 4  -  Post -Cannes  Member
Webinar
1 5  A p r  2 4  -  Screenwel l
Leadersh ip  Mat te rs  Repor t
Br ie f ing
1 1  A p r  2 4  -   Quar te r ly  SPA
Member  Meet ings
3 0  N o v  2 3  -  Member  Web inar  on
St reaming  Regu la t ion
9  N o v  2 3  -  Aust ra l ian  Screen
Content  Requ i rements  on
St reaming  Serv ices  Member
Webinar
9  N o v  2 3  -  New SPA Feature  F i lm
Wr i te r  Template  Agreement
Member  Br ie f ing
2 7  S e p  2 3  -  NSW Government
Update
1 2  S e p  2 3  -  D ig i ta l  Games  Tax
Offset  Update  Web inar
3  A u g  2 3  -  Consu l tant  Agreement
Template  Update
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The ever -popu la r  Screen  Bus iness
Essent ia l s  course ,  p resented  in
con junct ion  w i th  AFTRS,  was  he ld
on l ine  th is  year  in  M a y  2 0 2 4   and
O c t o b e r  2 0 2 3 .  

The  course  covers  the  commerc ia l
f ramework  in  wh ich  producers
operate ,  inc lud ing  i ssues
sur round ing  operat ing  a  c reat ive
bus iness  f rom the  ground  up .  

Top ics  inc lude :
lega l  s t ructures  fo r  bus inesses
and  fo r  p roduct ions ,  tax
incent ives  and  compl iance ,
f inanc ia l  management  o f  a
product ion  inc lud ing  manag ing
cash  f low and  bus iness  p lann ing ;
up- to-date  in format ion  on
copyr ight  and  cha in  o f  t i t le ,
d is t r ibut ion  and  l i cens ing
agreements ,  employment  law,  cast
and  c rew agreements ,  f r inges  and
insurance;  and
new ins ights  in to  r ights
negot ia t ion ,  f i lm  and  te lev is ion
indust ry  sources  o f  f inance .

Speakers  were  as  fo l lows :

Z o e  A n g u s  -  SPA;
A n d y  B a r c l a y  -  SPA;
G a r y  R o g e r s  -  B luepr in t  Law;
G e o r g i a  H u m p h r e y s  -  Corner  Tab le
Product ions  Aust ra l ia ;
V a r s h a  P r e m k u m a r  -  B luepr in t
Law;
Z a c h  P a r k e r  -  Fu lc rum Med ia
F inance;  
C a r m e l  C r e s w e l l  –  Count  Out
Loud;
S t e v e n  S m i t h  –  CBUS |  Med ia
Super ;
P e t e r  H e r b e r t  -  AFTRS;
J i l l  H e w i t t  -  Enter ta inment
Par tners ;  and
B l a k e  J e n k i n s  -  Count  Out  Loud.
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SCREEN BUSINESS

ESSENTIALS:

NAVIGATING

GROWTH

SPA's  Screen  Bus iness  Essent ia l s :
Nav igat ing  Growth ,  a  one-day  course ,
presented  in  con junct ion  w i th  AFTRS
was  he ld  on l ine  in  N o v e m b e r  2 0 2 3
and  J u n e  2 0 2 4 ,  o f fe r ing  a  p ract ica l ,
rea l -wor ld  gu ide  to  ensure  p roducers '
success  when  par tner ing  and
f inanc ing  the i r  next  p ro ject .

The  course  i s  a imed a t  m id-career
producers  and  covers  negot ia t ing  the
best  dea l  when  leverag ing  a  co-
product ion  dea l ,  nav igat ing  the  pros
and  cons  o f  o f f ic ia l  and  unof f ic ia l  co-
product ions  and  the  s t ra tegy  beh ind
creat ing  a  f inance  p lan .  

Speakers  were  as  fo l lows :

A n d y  B a r c l a y  -  SPA;
P e t e r  H e r b e r t  -  AFTRS;
E m m a  M a d i s o n  –  Screenr ights ;
M i c h e l e  M c D o n a l d  -  Screen
Aust ra l ia ;
T e s s  N o v a k  -  L ingo  P ic tures ;
S t e v e n  S m i t h  -  CBUS |  Med ia
Super ;
C a r m e l  T r a v e r s  -  Pop  Fami ly
Enter ta inment ;  and
V i r g i n i a  W h i t w e l l  –  GoodTh ing
Product ions .
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SPA cont inued  SPA Masterc lasses
th is  year .  Th is  ser ies  o f  ha l f -day
on l ine  courses  a re  des igned  as  a
deep  d ive  fo r  sc reen  indust ry
profess iona ls ’  unders tand ing  o f
spec i f ic ,  re levant  top ics .  

Top ics  were  as  fo l lows :

A p r i l  2 0 2 4  -  Theat r ica l
D is t r ibut ion  Masterc lass :  The
State  o f  P lay
D e c e m b e r  2 0 2 3  -  How Ar t i f i c ia l
In te l l igence  & Copyr ight  In te rsect
for  the  Screen  Indust ry
S e p t e m b e r  2 0 2 3  -  P roducer
Of fset  -  Best  Pract ice  Under  the
Cur rent  Gu ide l ines

Speakers  inc luded :

A n d y  B a r c l a y  -  SPA;
Y o l a n d i  F r a n k e n  -  F rankend ip i ty
Enterpr i ses ;
R a k e l  T a n s l e y  -  Screen  Aust ra l ia ;
G r e g  D e n n i n g  -  S tud iocana l ;
N i c k  H a y e s  -  Umbre l la
Enter ta inment ;
J o n a t h a n  P a g e  -  Bonsa i  F i lms ;
R e b e c c a  H a r d m a n  -  See-Saw
Fi lms ;
J a n i n e  P e a r c e  -  JP  Med ia  Law /
Chester f ie ld ;
D r  H a y t h a m  F a y e k  -  RMIT
Univers i ty ;
J a n i n e  L a p w o r t h  -  S impsons
So l ic i to rs ;
D r  R i t a  M a t u l i o n y t e  -  Macquar ie
Un ivers i ty ;
T o n y  N a g l e  -  Nag le  Account ing ;
D a n  P e a r c e  -  Ho ld ing  Red l ich ;
T i m  P h i l l i p s  -  Fu lc rum Med ia
F inance;
L i b e r t y  W a r r  -  Enter ta inment
Par tners ;
P h i l l i p a  W i l l i a m s  -  Nor thern
P ic tures

SPA

MASTERCLASS

SERIES
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After  a  se l l -out  launch  in  2022 Tak ing
your  Scr ip ted  TV Pro ject  To  Market
re turned  in  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 2 3 ,  aga in
convened  by  SPA Indust ry  Program
Manager ,  M iche l le  Hardy .

The  two-day  in tens ive  course  prepared
ear ly  and  mid-career  p roducers
work ing  towards  se l l ing  a  show,  fo r
a t tend ing  a  market .  

The  course  prov ided  va luab le  ins ights
that  he lped  to  c lose  a  gap  in
producers '  knowledge  and  prov ide
them wi th  conf idence  as  they  take
what  can  o f ten  be  a  daunt ing  s tep  in to
the  marketp lace  to  f inance  the i r
p ro jects .   

Speakers  were  as  fo l lows :

L o a n i  A r m a n  -  SBS;
R o s e m a r y  B l i g h t  -  Goa lpost  P ic tures
Aust ra l ia ;
M i k e  C o w a p  -  P r incess  P ic tures ;
R i c k  K a l o w s k i  -  Whoa  Band i t
Product ions ;
﻿L i s a  S c o t t  -  H ighv iew Product ions ;
R e b e c a  S u m m e r t o n  -  C loser
Product ions ;  and
R a k e l  T a n s l e y  -  Screen  Aust ra l ia .

TAKING YOUR

PROJECT TO

MARKET:

SCRIPTED TV
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SCREEN FOREVER 
IN REVIEW
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120
Speakers &
Moderators

40
Sessions

2,000
SPA Connect
Opportunities

18
Countries

Represented

1,000
 Delegates

12
Ones to Watch

Participants

$100M
Worth of Deals

Done Each Year

20
SPA Awards

Winners

6
Social Events



Presented  by  SPA,  SCREEN
FOREVER is  Aust ra l ia ’ s  p remier
screen  indust ry  event .  

Un i t ing  the  p i l l a rs  o f  enter ta inment ,
med ia  and  techno logy ,  SCREEN
FOREVER is  one  o f  the  la rgest
congregat ions  o f  sc reen  indust ry
profess iona ls  in  the  Southern
Hemisphere .  I t  i s  a t tended  by
lead ing  Aust ra l ian  and  in te rnat iona l
indust ry  p ract i t ioners  invo lved  in  a l l
aspects  o f  p roduc ing ,  c reat ing ,
wr i t ing ,  d i rect ing ,  d is t r ibut ing  and
f inanc ing  screen  content  across
f i lm,  TV,  games,  in te ract ive  and
on l ine .
 
For  38  years ,  SCREEN FOREVER has
deve loped  an  unr iva l led  ab i l i t y  to
un i te  the  sector  and  prov ide  a
wor ld -c lass  p la t fo rm to  champion
the  ta lent ,  pass ion  and
ach ievements  o f  the  Aust ra l ian
screen  indust ry ,  p rov id ing  a  v i ta l
fo rum for  d iscuss ion  and  debate  on
the  i ssues  and  cha l lenges  that
a f fect  sc reen  bus iness .  

Most  impor tant ly  SCREEN FOREVER,
through  the  SPA Connect
Marketp lace ,  de l i vers  c ruc ia l
bus iness  oppor tun i t ies  that
progress ,  ampl i fy  and  s t rengthen
Aust ra l ian  screen  s tor ies ,  generate
s ign i f icant  revenue  fo r  the
Aust ra l ian  economy,  and  c reate  jobs
for  Aust ra l ian  screen  pract i t ioners .

SPA was  th r i l l ed  to  we lcome over
1 ,000 de legates  f rom 18  count r ies  to
be  insp i red  across  40+ ins ight fu l
sess ions  lead  by  120+ exper ienced
speakers  and  moderators .  De legates
were  a lso  g iven  the  oppor tun i ty  to
do  bus iness  w i th  commiss ioners ,
f inanc ie rs  and  product ion  serv ices
prov iders  a t  2 ,000+ oppor tun i t ies  a t
the  SPA Connect  Domest ic  Market
and  On l ine  G loba l  Market .

INTRODUCTION
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LEAH PURCELL LEAH PURCELL 
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“A big thanks to you and the amazing SPA team for a
terrific Screen Forever. It was a pleasure to be a part of it.”

 “It was wonderful to have the opportunity to meet with so
many of the screen agencies and Australian producers in

one place.”

“I found the event to be extremely well organised,
communication was overly amazing and everyone was so

welcoming and friendly.”

 “All of my goals to meet with various stakeholders relevant
to my organisation were achieved: all in one venue, all in

one day!”

“Was really impressed with the sense of community, and
accessibility of everyone. It’s a great event.”

“This was my first time attending a Screen Forever and I
absolutely loved it! Was great to meet all the people I've

spent years on zooms with.”

“Great mix of networking, sessions, Roundtables and
Meetings, I dipped in and out on all!”

“Overall I felt it was exactly what I needed for my own
personal journey. It was inspirational and covered lots of

info for various filmmakers at different points of their own
career.”

“I was blown away by the quality of the event, the
networking opportunities, and even the lessons on how to

network most effectively. All your staff and volunteers
were super friendly and helpful.”

“It was so inspirational to see how far Australian TV and
film has progressed and evolved. The SPA and Screen

Forever team do a sensational job of hosting the event.”



SPA was  exc i ted  to  par tner  w i th  Screen
Producers  I re land  (SP I )  to  in t roduce  I re land
Connect ,  the  second  i te ra t ion  o f  the  G loba l
Connect  in i t ia t i ve .  

N ine  I r i sh  and  ten  Auss ie  p roducers  were
se lected  to  take  par t  in  the  program,  wh ich
a imed to  acce le ra te  co-product ion  and
par tnersh ip  oppor tun i t ies  between  the  land
down under  and  the  Emera ld  I s le .

The  par t ic ipants  s ta r ted  the  SCREEN
FOREVER act ion  a  day  ear ly  w i th  a  bespoke
sympos ium of  exc lus ive  ta lks  and  curated
meet ings ,  w i th  co-product ions ,  f inanc ing  and
loca l  incent ives  hot  on  the  agenda .

Th is  thought -provok ing  day  was  rounded  out
w i th  d inner  a t  HOTA hosted  by  the  C i ty  o f
Go ld  Coast ,  a longs ide  Aust ra l ia ' s  top
commiss ioners ,  d i s t r ibutors ,  sa les  agents ,
and  screen  bod ies .

Over  the  fo l low ing  days ,  the  cohor t
par t ic ipated  in  pane ls  and  the  broader  SPA
Connect  Market  by  host ing  p i tches  and  co-
product ion  roundtab les .  They  were  a lso
inv i ted  on  a  cu l tu ra l  tour  w i th  Screen
Queens land  to  learn  more  about  Aust ra l ia ’ s
r ich  h is to ry .

W W W . S C R E E N P R O D U C E R S . O R G . A U

Ireland
CONNECT
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With  an  o f f ic ia l  co-product ion  agreement  in
p lace  between  the  two  nat ions ,  the  I r i sh
de legat ion  was  a  spec ia l  in te rnat iona l
a t t ract ion  fo r  a l l  de legates ,  w i th  loca l
p roducers  see ing  the  oppor tun i ty  to  launch
the i r  ex is t ing  pro jects  in to  new markets  and
create  bo ld  and  exc i t ing  new s tor ies  w i th
screen  profess iona ls  f rom across  the  g lobe .  

In  summary ,  I re land  Connect :  

Fostered  co-product ion  re la t ionsh ips
between  Aust ra l ian  and  I r i sh  p roducers .  
P romoted  I re land  as  a  par tner  o f  cho ice
for  in te rnat iona l  co-product ions .  
H igh l ighted  the  benef i t s  o f  I r i sh  f i lm ing
incent ives  to  Aust ra l ian  p roducers .  
P rov ided  oppor tun i t ies  fo r  Aust ra l ian  and
I r i sh  p roducers  to  f inance  the i r  f i lm  or  TV
pro jects .  
S t imu la ted  and  grew in te rnat iona l  c reat ive
co l laborat ions  between  Aust ra l ia  and
I re land .

SPA has  been  in formed by  two  separate
member  bus inesses  that  they  a re  p rogress ing
pro jects  w i th  connect ions  made  v ia  the
I re land  Connect  p rogram.  

IRELAND CONNECT DELEGATION IRELAND CONNECT DELEGATION 
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This  year  SPA par tnered  w i th  Net f l i x  to
de l i ver  Broad  Hor izons ,  an  exc i t ing  new
in i t ia t i ve  des igned  to  increase  access  and
oppor tun i t ies  fo r  F i rs t  Nat ions  screen
profess iona ls .

The  in i t ia t i ve  a imed to  p rov ide  the  se lected
par t ic ipants  w i th  inva luab le  oppor tun i t ies  to
cont inue  to  g row and  th r ive  in  the  screen
indust ry .

F rom an  Emmy-winn ing  producer  who
h igh l ights  in t r ica te  s tory te l l ing  th rough  the
humani ty  o f  F i rs t  Nat ions  peop les ,  to  a
proud ly  queer  wr i te r  and  f i lmmaker  shar ing
power fu l  s to r ies  re f lec t ive  o f  the
communi t ies  she  be longs ,  and  a  wr i te r -
d i rector  fo r t i fy ing  a  space  fo r  Ind igenous

W W W . S C R E E N P R O D U C E R S . O R G . A U
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vo ices  in  the  Aust ra l ian  an imat ion  indust ry ,
each  par t ic ipant  b rought  a  un ique
perspect ive  and  wea l th  o f  ta lent  to  the
program,  showcas ing  the  r ich  d ivers i ty  o f
vo ices  w i th in  the  Aust ra l ian  screen  indust ry .

Each  par t ic ipant  rece ived  a  compl imentary
SCREEN FOREVER 38 reg is t ra t ion ,  re turn
f l ights  and  accommodat ion  to  a t tend  SCREEN
FOREVER 38 on  the  Go ld  Coast ,  a  12-month
SPA Assoc ia te  Producer  membersh ip ,  and
exc lus ive  network ing  oppor tun i t ies .  

A  spec ia l  b reakfas t  was  he ld  on  day  one  o f
the  conference  to  in t roduce  the  cohor t  to  key
indust ry  p layers  and  bu i ld  on  new and
ex is t ing  re la t ionsh ips .  
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Day  One  of  SCREEN FOREVER k icked  of f
w i th  an  engag ing  Launchpad  workshop  fo r
f i r s t  t imers ,  fo l lowed by  the  ever -popu la r
Of f ic ia l  Open ing ,  where  SPA CEO Mat thew
Deaner  was  jo ined  by  Screen  Queens land
CEO,  Jacqu i  Feeney ,  and  Dan  Fahy  f rom
Ampere  Ana lys is ,  to  we lcome de legates  to
Queens land 's  g l i t te r ing  Go ld  Coast  and
exp lore  indust ry  movements  f rom a  research
perspect ive .

Next  up ,  in te rnat iona l  indust ry  leaders  and
loca l  Aust ra l ian  p roducers  a l ike  took  the
stage  fo r  ABC Presents :  The  But te r f l y  E f fect .
Th is  l i ve ly  d iscuss ion  exp lored  what
Aust ra l ia ’ s  seat  a t  the  g loba l  enter ta inment
tab le  w i l l  l ook  l i ke  in  2024 and  beyond.

Th is  year ,  the  Hector  Crawford  Memor ia l
Lecture  was  de l i vered  by  one  o f  Aust ra l ia ’ s
most  i con ic  per formers ,  Magda  Szubansk i ,  a
househo ld  name for  over  four  decades .

W W W . S C R E E N P R O D U C E R S . O R G . A U
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Alongs ide  w inn ing  a  Mo Award ,  seven  Log ie
Awards ,  th ree  AWGIE  Awards ,  two  Peop le ’ s
Cho ice  Awards  and  an  AF I  fo r  Best  Act ress ,
Magda  i s  a l so  one  o f  Aust ra l ia ’ s  most  p ro l i f i c
LGBTQIA+ r ights  act iv i s ts ,  and  her  rous ing
address  w i l l  not  soon  be  fo rgot ten .

Round ing  out  the  f i r s t  day ’s  sess ions ,  De i rd re
Brennan  (CEO -  Screen  Aust ra l ia )  appeared
In  Conversat ion  to  d iscuss  her  thoughts  on
what  l i es  ahead  fo r  the  nat iona l  fund ing
body ,  and  the  oppor tun i t ies  she  i s  see ing
in ternat iona l l y  and  domest ica l l y  fo r  sc reen
bus inesses ,  p roducers  and  c reat ives .

Day  One  conc luded  poo ls ide  by  we lcoming
v is i t ing  guests  a t  the  In te rnat iona l  Par tner
Dr inks ,  fo l lowed by  the  enormous ly  popu la r
Aud io  Network  Open ing  N ight  Dr inks .  There
is  no  bet te r  way  to  meet ,  m ing le  and
converse  w i th  f r iends ,  new and  o ld .  
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The second  day  o f  SCREEN FOREVER 38 was
packed  to  the  br im w i th  indust ry  ins ights .  

The  day  began  w i th  the  Screenr ights  Speed
Network ing  Hour ,  an  energ is ing  and  in forma l
env i ronment  fo r  de legates  to  bu i ld  new
indust ry  re la t ionsh ips .  

De legates  then  h i t  the  ground  runn ing  w i th  a
number  o f  in format ive  and  engag ing
sess ions ,  inc lud ing  Taming  the  G loba l
St reaming  T iger ! ,  The  Evo lu t ion  o f  Ch i ld ren 's
Content  Consumpt ion ,  F i rs t  Nat ions  Vo ices
Front  and  Cent re :  Co l laborat ion  in  a  New Era
of  Truth-Te l l ing ,  and  Meet  the  Buyers :
Unscr ip ted  1  and  2 .  

A  range  of  lead ing  loca l  and  in te rnat iona l
guests  a lso  appeared  in  conversat ion ,
inc lud ing  A lon  Aranya  (Paper  P lane
Product ions ) ,  Ca i lah  Scob ie  (Stan) ,  Amanda
La ing  (B INGE) ,  and  A l  C la rk  (Wi ldhear t
F i lms) .

SPA Connect  k icked  of f  w i th  gusto  w i th  two   
fu l l y -booked,  fas t  and  fun  rounds  o f  Ready ,
Steady ,  P i tch ! ,  fo l lowed by  an  a f te rnoon  of
network ing  and  in format ion  shar ing  a t  the
Marketp lace  Roundtab les .

Lead ing  hosts  across  the  two  s t reams
inc luded  Stan ,  S tud iocana l ,  ACTF,  SC F i lms
In ternat iona l ,  Head  Gear  F i lms ,  Umbre l la
Enter ta inment ,  ABC,  SBS,  Warner  Bros .
D iscovery  ANZ,  Roadshow F i lms ,  BYUtv ,  and
many  more .

De legates  rounded  out  the  day  ming l ing  and
network ing  under  Queens land ’s  go lden  sk ies
at  the  C i ty  o f  Go ld  Coast  Mayor ' s  Sunset
Soc ia l .

W W W . S C R E E N P R O D U C E R S . O R G . A U
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Delegates  s ta r ted  Day  Three  o f  SCREEN
FOREVER wi th  a  Breathwork  &  Sound  Hea l ing
Exper ience  to  c lear  the i r  m inds  and  get
focused  fo r  another  b ig  day  ahead .

The  sess ions  that  fo l lowed had  a  s t rong
g loba l  and  bus iness  focus ,  w i th  th ree  fu l l y -
booked  Meet  the  Funders  pane ls ,  an
ins ight fu l  Meet  the  Commiss ioners :  New
Zea land  d iscuss ion ,  and  the  ever -popu la r
Meet  the  Buyers :  Scr ip ted  pane l  g rant ing
de legates   d i rect  access  to  the  dec is ion
makers  a t  S tan ,  SBS,  Foxte l  Group  and  ABC.  

Other  notab le  sess ions  inc luded  an  in
conversat ion  w i th  legendary  p roduc ing  pa i r
Ron  Howard  and  B i l l  Connor ,  a  l i ve ly
d iscuss ion  o f  G loba l  Co l laborat ion  and  the
Bus iness  o f  Aust ra l ian  Enter ta inment ,  and
deep  d ives  on  I s  D ivers i ty  fo r  H i re? ,  Your
Next  H i t  Show & F ind ing  the  Creators ,
Get t ing  Over  Ourse lves  and  the  Cr inge  o f
Hor ror ,  and  Why  YA?.

The  f ina l  day  o f  the  in -person  SPA Connect
Market  featured  the  re turn  o f  the  Pub l i sher ’ s
P i tch  and  Pub l i sher ’ s  Market ,  fo l lowed by  the   
P roduct ion  Par tnersh ip  Forum,  a  new
in i t ia t i ve  a imed a t  g iv ing   independent
product ion  compan ies  the  oppor tun i ty  to
create  impor tant  re la t ionsh ips ,  par tnersh ips ,
and  a l l i ances .

Forum hosts  inc luded  F ly ing  Bark
Product ions ,  Wooden  Horse ,  Sh inAwi l ,  Easy
T iger  Product ions ,  Werner  F i lm  Product ions ,
Pr incess  P ic tures ,  P re lude  Content ,  and
Every  C loud  Product ions .

The  day  rounded  out  by  honour ing  the  sk i l l ,
accompl i shment  and  imag inat ion  o f  the  SPA
members  who  br ing  qua l i ty  Aust ra l ian  s tor ies
to  l i fe  a t  the  pres t ig ious  SPA Awards  and
SCREEN FOREVER Ga la  Par ty .  

W W W . S C R E E N P R O D U C E R S . O R G . A U
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SPA AWARDS

The Screen  Producers  Aust ra l ia  (SPA)   
Awards  ce lebrate  the  exce l lence  o f  the
compan ies  and  c reat ives  beh ind
Aust ra l ia ' s  most  i con ic  sc reen  s tor ies .
The  annua l  Awards  honour  the  sk i l l ,
accompl i shment ,  and  imag inat ion  o f  SPA
members  and  remain  the  on ly  awards
voted  so le ly  by  the  product ion
bus inesses  who  take  Aust ra l ian  s tor ies
to  the  wor ld .

Hosted  by  Actor  and  Comedian  Mat t
Ok ine ,  the  n ight  saw 20  prominent
compan ies  ce lebrated  across  16
compet i t i ve  categor ies .  Renowned f i lm
and  te lev is ion  product ion  company
Werner  F i lm  Product ions  was  the  b ig
winner ,  w inn ing  th ree  awards ,  inc lud ing
the  coveted  Med ia  Super  Product ion
Bus iness  o f  the  Year  Award .

They  were  c lose ly  fo l lowed by  the
dynamic  Wooden  Horse  who  scored  two
t roph ies  fo r  ​​Breakthrough  Bus iness  o f
the  Year  and  Te lemov ie  o r  M in iser ies
Product ion  o f  the  Year .  The  n ight  a l so
honoured  F iona  Eagger  and  Deb  Cox,
Co-Founders  o f  Every  C loud
Product ions ,  who  shared  the  L i fe t ime
Ach ievement  Award .

Aust ra l ian  screen  s ta rs  inc lud ing  N ina
Oyama (Class  o f  ‘07 ) ,  Remy H i i  (Crazy
Rich  As ians ,  Wel lman ia ,  Af ter taste ) ,
Leah  Purce l l  (The Drover ' s  Wi fe ,
Wentworth ,  Redfern  Now ) ,  Mar ta
Dusse ldorp  (Bay  of  F i res ,  Janet  K ing ,  A
P lace  to  Ca l l  Home ) ,  Rob  Co l l ins
(Cleverman,  The  Wrong  Gi r l ,  G l i tch ) ,
and  Ch ika  Ikogwe (Heartbreak  H igh ,
Land  of  Bad,  The  Tour is t )  had  the
oppor tun i ty  to  congratu la te  the  w inners
persona l ly  as  p resenters .

5 9
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The fu l l  l i s t  o f  w inners  i s  as  fo l lows :

P r o d u c t i o n  A w a r d s
A n i m a t e d  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  ( j o i n t
w i n n e r s )  -

100% Wol f :  Book  of  Hath  (ABC) ,  F ly ing
Bark  Product ions
Beep and  Mort  (ABC) ,  Windmi l l  P ic tures

C h i l d r e n ’ s  S e r i e s  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  -
Crazy  Fun  Park  (ABC) ,  Werner  F i lm
Product ions
C o m e d y  P r o g r a m  o r  S e r i e s  P r o d u c t i o n  o f
t h e  Y e a r  ( j o i n t  w i n n e r s )  -

Dead loch  (Amazon  Pr ime  V ideo) ,
Guesswork  Te lev is ion  and  OK Great
Product ions
In  L imbo  (ABC) ,  Bunya  Product ions  and
Hei ress  F i lms

D o c u m e n t a r y  P r o g r a m  o r  S e r i e s  P r o d u c t i o n
o f  t h e  Y e a r  -  Ninga loo  Ny inggu lu  (ABC) ,
Ar temis  Med ia  and  Mat ter  o f  Factua l
D r a m a  S e r i e s  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  -  The
Newsreader  S2  (ABC) ,  Werner  F i lm
Product ions
E n t e r t a i n m e n t  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  -
Hard  Qu iz  S9  (ABC) ,  Th inkat ive  Te lev is ion
F e a t u r e  D o c u m e n t a r y  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e
Y e a r  -  Har ley  &  Katya ,  S t ranger  Than
F ic t ion  F i lms

F e a t u r e  F i l m  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  ( jo in t
w inners )  -

Shayda ,  Or igma 45    
The Roya l  Hote l ,  See-Saw F i lms

O n l i n e  S e r i e s  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  -
Touch  the  Sky ,  Nora  &  R .D .  Product ions
R e a l i t y  S e r i e s  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  -  The
Great  Aust ra l ian  Bake  Of f  S7  (Foxte l
Group) ,  BBC Stud ios  Aust ra l ia
S h o r t  F i l m  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e  Y e a r  -  J ia ,  N iu
Stud ios  and  Toprock  Product ions   
T e l e m o v i e  o r  M i n i s e r i e s  P r o d u c t i o n  o f  t h e
Y e a r ,  The C lear ing  (D isney+) ,  Wooden
Horse

B u s i n e s s  A w a r d s
B r e a k t h r o u g h  B u s i n e s s  o f  t h e  Y e a r  -
Wooden Horse
M e d i a  S u p e r  P r o d u c t i o n  B u s i n e s s  o f  t h e
Y e a r  -  Werner  F i lm  Product ions
S e r v i c e s  &  F a c i l i t i e s  B u s i n e s s  o f  t h e  Y e a r
-  Pr incess  Bento  Stud io
S c r e e n  B u s i n e s s  E x p o r t  A w a r d  -  Goalpost
P ic tures

I n d i v i d u a l  A w a r d s
L i f e t i m e  A c h i e v e m e n t  A w a r d  -  F iona
Eagger  and  Deborah  Cox,  Every  C loud
Product ions

W W W . S C R E E N P R O D U C E R S . O R G . A U

WINNERS
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WOODEN HORSE, BREAKTHROUGH BUSINESS OF THE YEAR WINNER 
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Windmill Pictures,

Animated Production of the Year winner

See-Saw Films,

Feature Film Production of the Year Winner

Goalpost Pictures, Screen Business Export Award Winner

S AAI 

PAAWARDS 

EII "««ss 

■ANNUAL 

AWARDS . PAA A D 

A R 

A I 
A W 

I 

± 
Lie. l 
e - 

\_:; 
""---o • 

u 

NIU STUDIOS & TOPROCK PRODUCTIONS, 
SHORT FILM PRODUCTION OF THE YEAR WINNER 
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ONES TO WATCH
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Now ce lebrat ing  i t s  1 1 th  year ,  Ones  To  Watch
is  a  p rofess iona l  deve lopment  and  mentor ing
program for  ear ly -career  sc reen  producers
look ing  to  acce le ra te  the i r  sc reen  bus iness
acumen to  the  next  leve l .

I t  takes  a  g i f ted  ind iv idua l  w i th  the  r ight
bus iness  acumen,  c reat iv i ty  and  gr i t  to
succeed  as  a  p roducer ,  and  ident i fy ing  and
mould ing  ta lented  ind iv idua ls  ear ly  in  the i r
careers  has  a  mu l t i tude  o f  benef i t s  fo r  the
i
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Amy Par ry  was  th is  year ’ s  w inner  and  w i l l  use
the  grant  to  secure  a  p lacement  w i th  E leven
in  the  UK as  they  commence  product ion  on
season  two  of  ‘Ten  Pound  Poms ’  –  a  co-
product ion  between  Stan  and  BBC produced
by  E leven  and  Cur io  P ic tures .

F ina l l y ,  one  o f  the  most  benef ic ia l  par ts  o f
the  program has  a lways  been  the  network ing
oppor tun i t ies .  Th is  year  was  no  except ion ,
w i th  the  members  o f  the  Screenworks

2023 ONES TO WATCH COHOnT 
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 M E N T O R :  J O  P O R T E R ,

C U R I O  P I C T U R E S

V E E  S H I

M E N T O R :  I M O G E N  B A N K S ,

K I N D L I N G  P I C T U R E S

T O B I A S  W I L L I S

 M E N T O R :  A L A S T A I R

M A C K I N N O N ,  

M A T C H B O X  P I C T U R E S

N A R A  W I L S O N

M E N T O R :  S U Z A N N E  R Y A N ,  

S L R  P R O D U C T I O N S
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L I S A  A L B E R T

 M E N T O R S :  J E N N I F E R  P E E D O M

&  J O - A N N E  M C G O W A N ,

S T R A N G E R  T H A N  F I C T I O N

S T E P H A N I E  C O L E

 M E N T O R S :  M E L I N D A  W E A R N E  &

D A V I D  O G I L V Y ,  

B E Y O N D  P R O D U C T I O N S

G I L L I A N  C R O S B Y

 M E N T O R :  T A N Y A  P H E G A N ,

G U E S S W O R K  T V

A L E X A N D R A  D O E R I N G

 M E N T O R :  I A N  C O L L I E ,  

E A S Y  T I G E R  P R O D U C T I O N S

M I C H A E L  H U D S O N

M E N T O R :  D A V I D  J O W S E Y  &

G R E E R  S I M P K I N ,  

B U N Y A  P R O D U C T I O N S

J O D I E  K I R K B R I D E

M E N T O R :  B R E T T  P O P P L E W E L L ,

F R E M A N T L E  A U S T R A L I A

T E S S A  M A N S F I E L D - H U N G

 M E N T O R :  L I S A  S H A U N E S S Y ,

A R C A D I A

M O N I Q U E  M U L C A H Y

M E N T O R :  H U G H  B A L D W I N ,

F L Y I N G  B A R K  P R O D U C T I O N S
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Making the Most of the Ones to Watch Program 
Speakers: Rosie Lourde, Jess Magro & Aven Yap (all

former Ones to Watch)

Creating a Sustainable Screen Business
Speakers: Veronica Fury, Wildbear Entertainment & Blake

Northfield, Bronte Pictures

Case Study: Beast of War 
Speakers: Blake Northfield, Bronte Pictures

Working with Distributors - Locally and Globally 
Speakers: Paul Wiegard & Michael Matrenza

Co-Producing Feature Films
Speaker: Rebecca Summerton, Closer Productions

An Insiders Look at Post Production
Speaker: Darius Family, PostLab IO

Wrap up & Next steps
Speaker: Michelle Cheng, SBS 

WEBINARS
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AMY PARRY AND DEIRDRE BRENNAN, SPA AWARDS 2024 

MONIQUE MULCAHY, SCREEN FOREVER 38 

TOBIAS WILLIS AND MONIQUE MULCAHY, SCREEN FOREVER 38 

GILLIAN CROSBY, SCREEN FOREVER 38 
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Operating Report
30 June 2024

The Committee of Management presents their report together with the financial statements of the reporting
unit, the operating report of the Screen Producers Association of Australia (“the Association”) for the financial
year ended 30 June 2024.

Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial year

The names of each person who has been on the Committee of Management during the financial year were:

Name Position Period of appointment 

Tracey Vieira President 1 July 2023 - 30 June 2024

Suzanne Ryan Vice President 1 July 2023 - 30 June 2024

Tsu Shan Chambers Councillor 1 July 2023 - 30 June 2024

Veronica Fury Councillor 1 July 2023 - 30 June 2024

Lisa Scott Councillor 1 July 2023 - 30 June 2024

Kylie Munnich Councillor 7 December 2023 - 30 June 2024

Nathan Anderson Councillor 1 July 2023 - 7 December 2023

Review of principal activities, the results of these activities and any significant changes in the nature of
those activities during the year 

The principal activities of the Association during the financial year were to provide a representative forum for
members involved in the Australian Film, Television, Online and Immersive Media Industry.

This included regular consultations with members, representing the interest of members to government,
organising the Screen Forever conference, and regular meetings of the committee of management.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Association’s principal activities during the year.

The operating surplus for the Screen Producers Association of Australia for the year ended 30 June 2024 was
$117,903 (2023: $251,617).

A review of the operations and the results of the Association is performed in the regular meetings of the
Committee of Management. The Committee of Management believe that they have furthered the interests of
their members throughout the year through the conducting of the Association's principal activities.

Significant changes in financial affairs

There have been no significant changes in the financial affairs of the Association.
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Operating Report
30 June 2024

Events after the reporting date

There has not been any matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that has 
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Association, the results of those 
operations, or the state of affairs of the Association in subsequent financial periods.

Number of members

The number of members of the Association at the end of the financial year was 661 (30 June 2023: 703).

Number of employees

The total number of full-time equivalent employees as at 30 June 2024 was 13 (30 June 2023: 11).

Right of members to resign

All members of the Association have the right to resign in accordance with Rule 10 of the Association's Rules 
[and section 174 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009], namely, by providing written notice 
addressed and delivered to the Chief Executive Officer of the Association.

Officers or members who are superannuation fund trustee(s) or director of a company that is a 
superannuation fund trustee where being a member or officer of a registered organisation is a criterion for 
them holding such position

To the best of our knowledge, no officer or member of the reporting unit holds a position as a trustee or 
director of a superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where the criterion for 
holding such position is that they are an officer or member of an organisation.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management:

Tracey Vieira
President

Dated: 14 October 2024
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Committee of Management Statement 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

On 14 October 2024 the Committee of Management of the Screen Producers Association of Australia ("the 
Association"), passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report for the year 
ended 30 June 2024:

The Committee of Management declares that in its opinion:
(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards;
(b) the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the Reporting

Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 ("the RO Act");
(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial

position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year ended to which they relate;
(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and

when they become due and payable; and
(e) during the financial year to which the general purpose financial report relates and since the end of

that year:
i) meetings of the Committee of Management were held in accordance with the rules of the

organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and
ii) the financial affairs of a reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the

organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and
iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the

RO Act; and
iv) where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the

reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the other
reporting units of the organisation; and

v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or the
General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO Act that information has been provided
to the member or the General Manager; and

vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work Commission
under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.

Tracey Vieira 
President

Dated: 14 October 2024
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note

2024

$

2023

$

Revenue 4 3,768,467 3,733,043

Other income 4 77,070 33,898

3,845,537 3,766,941

Employee benefits expense 5 (2,071,360) (1,951,625)

Seminar and conference expenses (917,528) (899,564)

Lease expenses 11 (121,504) (124,093)

Contractors (150,016) (154,596)

Travel expenses (90,700) (81,375)

Industry programs (27,500) (42,650)

Affiliation fees 5 (48,876) (7,845)

Depreciation expense 9(a),10(a) (40,765) (48,146)

Advertising and promotion (6,962) (12,385)

Meeting expenses (48,451) (53,466)

Other operating expenses (203,972) (139,579)

Result for the year 117,903 251,617

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 117,903 251,617

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2024

Note

2024

$

2023

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 6 730,333 1,693,232

Trade and other receivables 7 90,233 276,480

Financial assets 8 1,400,000 400,000

Prepayments 24,614 5,901

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,245,180 2,375,613

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 9 24,654 27,962

Intangible assets 10 187,625 35,912

Right-of-use assets 11 24,493 122,466

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 236,772 186,340

TOTAL ASSETS 2,481,952 2,561,953

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 12 243,200 216,765

Lease liabilities 28,845 104,421

Employee benefits 13 140,973 130,952

Other financial liabilities 14 307,978 449,180

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 720,996 901,318

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities - 28,235

Employee benefits 13 40,025 29,372

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 40,025 57,607

TOTAL LIABILITIES 761,021 958,925

NET ASSETS 1,720,931 1,603,028

EQUITY

Retained earnings 1,720,931 1,603,028

TOTAL EQUITY 1,720,931 1,603,028

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Retained
Earnings

$

Balance at 1 July 2023 1,603,028

Result for the year 117,903

Balance at 30 June 2024 1,720,931

Balance at 1 July 2022 1,351,411

Result for the year 251,617

Balance at 30 June 2023 1,603,028

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note

2024

$

2023

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from members and other revenue 4,216,487 4,400,927

Payments to employees and suppliers (3,953,498) (3,784,826)

Interest received 45,973 10,398

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 20 308,962 626,499

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of plant and equipment (16,093) (5,618)

Purchase of intangible assets (151,957) (16,046)

Payment for investments (1,000,000) (359,619)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (1,168,050) (381,283)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Repayment of borrowings - lease payments (103,811) (97,803)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (103,811) (97,803)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held (962,899) 147,413

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,693,232 1,545,819

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 6 730,333 1,693,232

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.
For the purpose of preparing the general purpose financial statements, Screen Producers Association of
Australia ("the Association") is a not-for-profit entity.

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except where
stated, no allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial position. The
financial statements are presented in Australian dollars.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

Material accounting policy information adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are
presented below and are consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated.

The Association has adopted the amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements which
require only the disclosure of material accounting policy information rather than significant accounting
policies and therefore policy information which does not satisfy one of the following requirements has
been removed from these financial statements:

 Relates to change in accounting policy

 Policy has been developed in the absence of an explicit accounting standard requirement

 Documents an accounting policy choice

 Relates to an area of significant judgement or estimation

 Relates to a complex transaction and is required to explain the treatment to the user

2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(a) Revenue and other income

The Association enters into various arrangements where it receives consideration from another
party. These arrangements include consideration in the form of membership subscriptions, levies
and sponsorship and grants funding.

The timing of recognition of these amounts as either revenue or income depends on the rights and
obligations in those arrangements.

8



Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(a) Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Association expects to receive in
exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows:
1. Identify the contract with the customer;
2. Identify the performance obligations;
3. Determine the transaction price;
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and
5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred.

Generally, the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds
closely to the timing of satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a
difference, it will result in the recognition of a receivable, contract asset or contract liability.

None of the revenue streams of the Association have any significant financing terms as there is less
than 12 months between receipt of funds and satisfaction of performance obligations.

Specific revenue streams

The revenue recognition policies for the principal revenue streams of the Association are:

Membership income

For membership subscription arrangements that meet the criteria to be contracts with customers,
revenue is recognised when the promised goods or services transfer to the customer as a member
of the Association.  

There is only one distinct membership service promised in the arrangement. Accordingly, the
Association recognises revenue as the membership service is provided, which is typically based on
the passage of time over the subscription period to reflect the Association promise to stand ready
to provide assistance and support to the member as required.

For member subscriptions paid annually in advance, the Association has elected to apply the
practical expedient to not adjust the transaction price for the effects of a significant financing
component because the period from when the customer pays and the good or services will transfer
to the customer will be one year or less.  

9



Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(a) Revenue and other income

Specific revenue streams

When a member subsequently purchases additional goods or services from the Association at their
standalone selling price, the Association accounts for those sales as a separate contract with a
customer. 

Levies 

Levies paid by a member (or other party) in an arrangement that meets the criteria to be a contract
with a customer is recognised as revenue when the Association invoices the member who
contributes 0.25% of the total budgeted direct costs for all new film and television productions. 

Sponsorships

The Association receives sponsorships from various sources to fund special events and activities
throughout the year. Such revenue is recognised when the sponsorship is invoiced and the
sponsored event or activity has been completed.

Volunteer services

During the year the Association did not recognise any volunteer services as revenue because it
could not reliably measure the fair value of these services.

Interest revenue

Interest is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method.

Investment income 

Investment income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it.

10



Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(b) Income Tax

The Association is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax Assessment Act
1997, however still has obligations for Payroll Tax, Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and
Services Tax (GST).

(c) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST),
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
(ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables
or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

(d) Capitation fees and levies

Capitation fees and levies are recognised on an accruals basis and recorded as an expense in the
year to which it relates.

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturity of
3 months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable,
any accumulated depreciation and impairment.
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the asset's useful life to the Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate

Office Equipment 5% - 25%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value
of each asset is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

(g) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Association assesses whether a lease exists.

     Lessee accounting

The non-lease components included in the lease agreement have been separated and are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

Right-of-use asset

At the lease commencement, the Association recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease
liability for the lease term. The lease term includes extension periods where the Association
believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises
of the lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and
restoration less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis and assessed for
impairment in accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy.
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2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(g) Leases

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease.  The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this
cannot be readily determined then the Association's incremental borrowing rate is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. The lease liability is remeasured whether there is a lease
modification, change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which the lease payments are
based (e.g. CPI) or a change in the Association's assessment of lease term.

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the
remeasurement or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

Exceptions to lease accounting

The Association has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases
(i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. The
Association recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(h) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Association becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
(except for instruments measured at fair value through-profit or loss where transaction costs are
expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets

Classification 

On initial recognition, the Association classifies its financial assets into those measured at
amortised cost. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Association
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

 the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Association's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other
receivables, other financial assets and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less provision for impairment.

Interest income and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets 

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assets has increased significant since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Association considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Association's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Association uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a
significant increase in credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Association uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

 the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Association in full, without

recourse to the Association to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

 the financial assets is more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to
the Association in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received. This is
applied using a probability weighted approach.

Trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9
which uses an estimation of lifetime expected credit losses. The Association has determined the
probability of non-payment of the receivable and contract asset and multiplied this by the amount
of the expected loss arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being
recognised in finance expense. Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the
gross carrying amount is written off against the associated allowance.

Where the Association renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the
new expected cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting
difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the
expected credit loss model in AASB 9. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the
expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the asset has experienced
significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Association measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs,
subsequently financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

15



Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(h) Financial instruments

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities of the Association comprise trade payables and deferred income.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the Association determines whether there is any evidence of an
impairment indicator for non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets
not yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the
relevant cash-generating unit (CGU) is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived
from an asset or cash-generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an
impairment loss.

(j) Intangible assets

Software

Software has a finite life and is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. It has an estimated useful life of between one and three years.

(k) Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods in which services are provided by
employees.
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2 Material Accounting Policy Information

(k) Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating annual leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
balance sheet. 

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period of
high-quality corporate bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(l) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Association has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time during the year
ended 30 June 2024. None of the new standards had a material impact on the reported financial
position of performance.

(m) New accounting standards for application in future periods

Certain new accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2024
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Association. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Association in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions. 
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3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The Committee of Management make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these
financial statements regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and
balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the
financial statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from
the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below: 

        Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment 

The Association assess impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific
to the Branch that may be indicative of impairment triggers. 

        Key estimates - useful lives of depreciable assets 

The Association review its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets to each reporting date, based
on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence
that may change the utility of certain property, plant and equipment.

        Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that any of the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable
where the entire balance is not considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best
information at the reporting date.

        Key estimates - employee entitlements

As described in the accounting policies, provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These estimates are
made taking into account a range of possible outcomes and will vary as further information is obtained.
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4 Revenue and Other Income

2024

$

2023

$

Revenue from contracts with customers 

- Compulsory levies 1,355,038 1,449,833

- Seminar and conference income 1,875,099 1,806,553

- Membership fees 278,535 233,584

- Sponsorships 259,795 243,073

3,768,467 3,733,043

Other income 

- Grants 31,097 23,848

- Interest income 41,973 10,398

- (Loss)/profit on disposal of assets - (348)

- Other income 4,000 -

77,070 33,898

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers has been disaggregated and the following table shows this
breakdown:

Timing of revenue recognition

- Over time 278,535 233,584

- At a point in time 3,489,932 3,499,459

Revenue from contracts with customers 3,768,467 3,733,043
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5 Result for the Year

2024

$

2023

$

Employee Expenses 

Employees other than office holders

Wages and salaries 1,793,453 1,704,750

Superannuation 197,665 181,955

Leave and other entitlements 20,674 7,751

Other employee expenses (including payroll tax) 59,568 57,169

2,071,360 1,951,625

Grants and donations expense 

Donations - total paid that were $1,000 or less 900 100

Legal costs 

Other matters 48,704 11,400

Affiliation fees

Creative Content Australia                                                              1,000 1,000

Australian Copyright Council                                                           1,638 1,573

International Institute of Communications                              1,650 1,500

Council of Small Business Organisations                                            - 1,650

Screen Diversity & Inclusion Network                                           - 500

Australian Federation of Employers and Industries                      811 1,622

South Australian Film Corporation 500 -

FIAPF Film Producers Worldwide 22,981 -

European Australian Business Council 20,000 -

Festival De Cannes 296 -

48,876 7,845

Meeting expenses 48,451 53,466
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5 Result for the Year

2024

$

2023

$

Screen Forever conference income

Ticket sales 609,018 603,661

Sponsorships 1,157,442 1,115,429

Registrations 20,310 14,974

Sundry 8,094 3,543

1,794,864 1,737,607

Other seminar income 80,235 68,857

1,875,099 1,806,464

Screen Forever conference expenses

Booking and payment 39,650 36,203

Venue and equipment 538,694 502,524

Catering 28,377 22,402

Production 117,056 114,615

Travel 152,775 186,926

Marketing and promotion 17,151 15,919

Administration expenses 3,790 6,154

Contract labour 2,874 4,027

Other seminar expenses 10,341 10,794

910,708 899,564

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank 730,333 1,693,232

21



Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

7 Trade and Other Receivables

Note

2024

$

2023

$

Trade receivables 76,851 263,098

Provision for impairment (a) - -

Deposits 13,382 13,382

90,233 276,480

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the
short-term nature of the balances.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable in
the financial statements.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Association applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by AASB 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2024 is
determined as follows, the expected credit losses incorporate forward looking information.

30 June 2024 Current
< 90 days
overdue

> 90 days
overdue Total

Expected loss rate (%) %- %- %-

Gross carrying amount ($) 27,500 49,351 - 76,851

ECL provision - - - -

30 June 2023

Expected loss rate (%) %- %- %-

Gross carrying amount ($) 219,220 43,878 - 263,098

ECL provision - - - -
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8 Financial Assets

2024

$

2023

$

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Term deposits 1,400,000 400,000

9 Property, plant and equipment

Office equipment

At cost 191,513 176,264

Accumulated depreciation (166,859) (148,302)

24,654 27,962

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the
beginning and the end of the current financial year:

Office
Equipment

$

Year ended 30 June 2024

Balance at the beginning of year 27,962

Additions 16,093

Depreciation expense (19,401)

Balance at the end of the year 24,654

Year ended 30 June 2023

Balance at the beginning of year 43,329

Additions 5,618

Disposals (973)

Depreciation expense (20,012)

Balance at the end of the year 27,962
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10 Intangible Assets

2024

$

2023

$

Software

Cost 348,604 175,528

Accumulated amortisation and impairment (160,979) (139,616)

187,625 35,912

(a) Movements in carrying amounts of intangible assets

Software

$

Year ended 30 June 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 35,912

Additions 173,077

Amortisation (21,364)

Closing value at 30 June 2024 187,625

Year ended 30 June 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 48,000

Additions 16,046

Amortisation (28,134)

Closing value at 30 June 2023 35,912
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11 Leases

Association as a lessee

The Association has leases over land and buildings only. 

Terms and conditions of leases

Right-of-use assets

Buildings

$

Year ended 30 June 2024

Balance at beginning of year 122,466

Depreciation charge (97,973)

Balance at end of year 24,493

Year ended 30 June 2023

Balance at beginning of year 220,439

Depreciation charge (97,973)

Balance at end of year 122,466

Lease liabilities

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the
table below:

< 1 year

$

1 - 5 years

$

> 5 years

$

Total
undiscounted

lease liabilities

$

Lease liabilities
included in this
Balance Sheet

$

2024

Lease liabilities 29,061 - - 29,061 28,845

2023

Lease liabilities 107,479 26,870 - 134,349 132,656
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11 Leases

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income relating to
leases where the Association is a lessee are shown below:

2024

$

2023

$

Interest on lease liability 3,671 6,694

Short term lease expense 19,860 19,426

Depreciation expense 97,973 97,973

121,504 124,093

Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflow for leases 127,342 123,923

12 Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables 25,904 4,771

GST payable 47,505 61,711

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 169,791 150,283

243,200 216,765

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.
The carrying value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due
to the short-term nature of the balances.
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13 Employee Benefits

2024

$

2023

$

Current liabilities

Annual leave 73,694 74,621

Long service leave 67,279 56,331

140,973 130,952

Non-current liabilities

Long service leave 40,025 29,372

(a) Total employee benefits attributable to:

Employee provisions 

Employees other than office holders - Current  

Annual leave 73,694 74,621

Long service leave 67,279 56,331

140,973 130,952

Employees other than office holders - Non-current  

Long service leave 40,025 29,372

180,998 160,324

14 Contract Liabilities

The Association has recognised the following contract liabilities from contracts with customers:

CURRENT

Income in advance 307,978 449,180

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 30 June 2024 is $307,978 (30 June 2023: $449,180). Consistent with the prior year, the
Branch expects that all of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations is
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. These performance obligations primarily relate to
member subscription contracts and unearned income. All unearned income disclosed as a liability as at 30
June 2023 was recognised as revenue during the year ended 30 June 2024.
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15    Financial Risk Management

The main risks Screen Producers Association of Australia is exposed to through its financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk consisting equity price risk.

The Association's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, short-term investments,
accounts receivable and payable.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 as detailed in
the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Note

2024

$

2023

$

Financial assets

Held at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents 6 730,333 1,693,232

Trade and other receivables 7 90,233 276,480

Financial assets 8 1,400,000 400,000

Total financial assets 2,220,566 2,369,712

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 12 243,200 216,765

Lease liabilities 28,845 132,656

Total financial liabilities 272,045 349,421

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Association’s management of working capital. It is the risk that the
Association will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Association’s policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due. 

The Association manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring cash-outflows due in day-to-day
business. 
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15    Financial Risk Management

The Association's liabilities have contractual maturities which are summarised below:

Less than 1 year Total

2024

$

2023

$

2024

$

2023

$

Trade payables 243,200 216,765 243,200 216,765

The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

Credit risk 

The Association has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counterparty or
group of counterparties.

The Association does not hold any financial assets with terms that have been re-negotiated, but which
would otherwise be past due or impaired.

The other classes of receivables do not contain impaired assets.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Association.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to wholesale and retail customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Market risk

The Association is not exposed to a material level of interest rate risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Association is not exposed to interest rate risk as funds are borrowed at floating and fixed rates.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Association to fair value interest rate risk.
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15    Financial Risk Management

The Association's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing.
Longer-term borrowings are therefore usually at fixed rates. At the reporting date, the Association is
exposed to changes in market interest rates through its bank borrowings, which are subject to variable
interest rates.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are consistent with their carrying values as
presented in the balance sheet. Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Net income and expense from financial assets 

2024

$

2023

$

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Term deposits - interest income 41,973 10,398

16 Key Management Personnel Disclosures

The totals of remuneration paid to the key management personnel of Screen Producers Association of
Australia during the year are as follows:

Short term employee benefits

Salary (including any leave taken) 478,126 474,319

Leave accrued (annual leave) 38,134 40,223

Other long term benefits (long service leave) 13,431 7,676

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits (superannuation) 59,688 54,904

589,379 577,122

Key management personnel are defined at note 19(a).
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17 Auditors' Remuneration

2024

$

2023

$

Remuneration of the auditor Daley Audit for:

- auditing the financial statements 12,750 16,200

18 Contingencies

In the opinion of the Committee of Management the Association did not have any contingencies at 30
June 2024 (30 June 2023: None). 

19 Related Parties

(a) The Association's main related parties are as follows:

Key Management Personnel (KMP):

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any Committee (whether executive or
otherwise) of that entity are considered KMP.

For details of remuneration disclosures relating to key management personnel, refer to Note 16:
Key Management Personnel Disclosures.
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20 Cash Flow Information

(a) Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities

2024

$

2023

$

Result for the year 117,903 251,617

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating
activities

 - depreciation (including right of use assets) 138,738 146,119

 - net (gain)/loss on disposal of assets - 973

Changes in assets and liabilities:

 - (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 186,247 215,650

 - (increase)/decrease in other assets (18,713) 2,915

 - increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 5,315 (9,316)

 - increase/(decrease) in employee benefits 20,674 7,751

 - increase/(decrease) in income in advance (141,202) 10,790

Cashflows from operations 308,962 626,499

21 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

There has not been any matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that
has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Association, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the Association in subsequent financial periods. 
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22 Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention
of members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:

Information to be provided to members or General Manager:

1. A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit for specified
prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making
the application.

2. The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in
which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the
application is given to the reporting unit.

3. A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1).
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Report required under Subsection 255(2A)
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

The Committee of Management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 255(2A) of the
Reporting Unit for the year ended 30 June 2024.

Category of expenses 
2024

$
2023

$

Remuneration and other employment-related costs and expenses - employees 2,071,360 1,951,625

Advertising 7,675 13,086

Operating Costs 1,558,228 1,491,067

Donations to political parties 900 - 

Legal costs 48,704 11,400

Tracey Vieira 
President 

Dated: 14 October 2024
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Officer Declaration Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

I, Tracey Vieira, being the President of the Screen Producers Association of Australia, declare that the following 
activities did not occur during the reporting period ending 30 June 2024 (including the comparative period).  

The reporting unit did not: 
· agree to receive financial support from another reporting unit to continue as a going concern (refers to agreement

regarding financial support not dollar amount)
· agree to provide financial support to another reporting unit to ensure they continue as a going concern (refers to

agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount)
· acquire an asset or liability due to an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the RO Act, a restructure of the

branches of an organisation, a determination or revocation by the General Manager, Fair Work Commission
· receive periodic or membership subscriptions
· receive capitation fees from another reporting unit
· receive any other revenue amount from another reporting unit
· receive revenue via compulsory levies
· receive donations
· receive grants
· incur fees as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions
· pay capitation fees to another reporting unit
· pay any other expense to another reporting unit
· pay affiliation fees to other entity
· pay a grant that was $1,000 or less
· pay a grant that exceeded $1,000
· pay a donation that was $1,000 or less
· pay a donation that exceeded $1,000
· pay wages and salaries to holders of office
· pay superannuation to holders of office
· pay leave and other entitlements to holders of office
· pay separation and redundancy to holders of office
· pay other employee expenses to holders of office
· pay wages and salaries to employees (other than holders of office)
· pay superannuation to employees (other than holders of office)
· pay leave and other entitlements to employees (other than holders of office)
· pay separation and redundancy to employees (other than holders of office)
· pay other employee expenses to employees (other than holders of office)
· pay to a person fees or allowances to attend conferences or meetings as a representative of the reporting unit
· incur expenses due to holding a meeting as required under the rules of the organisation
· pay legal costs relating to litigation
· pay legal costs relating to other legal matters
· pay a penalty imposed under the RO Act or the Fair Work Act 2009
· have a receivable with other reporting unit
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Screen Producers Association of Australia

ABN: 46 091 470 324

Officer Declaration Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

· have a payable with other reporting unit
· have a payable to an employer for that employer making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions
· have a payable in respect of legal costs relating to litigation
· have a payable in respect of legal costs relating to other legal matters
· have an annual leave provision in respect of holders of office
· have a long service leave provision in respect of holders of office
· have a separation and redundancy provision in respect of holders of office
· have other employee provisions in respect of holders of office
· have an annual leave provision in respect of employees (other than holders of office)
· have a long service leave provision in respect of employees (other than holders of office)
· have a separation and redundancy provision in respect of employees (other than holders of office)
· have a fund or account for compulsory levies, voluntary contributions or required by the rules of the organisation

or branch
· transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general fund), account, asset or controlled entity
· have a balance within the general fund
· provide cash flows to another reporting unit and/or controlled entity
· receive cash flows from another reporting unit and/or controlled entity
· have another entity administer the financial affairs of the reporting unit
· make a payment to a former related party of the reporting unit

Tracey Vieira 
President 

Dated: 14 October 2024 
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Independent Audit Report to the members of Screen Producers Association of 
Australia 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of Screen Producers Association of Australia ("the Association"), which 
comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2024, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 30 June 
2024, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information, and the 
Committee of Management Statement, the subsection 255 (2A) report and the Officer Declaration Statement. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial presents fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the 
Association as at 30 June 2024 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended on that date 
in accordance with: 

(i) the Australian Accounting Standards; and 

(ii) any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of chapter 8 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 ("the RO Act"). 

We declare that management's use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements 
of the Association is appropriate. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the auditor independence of the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants ("the Code") that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We 
have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
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Opinion 
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2024, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information, and the 
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Association as at 30 June 2024 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended on that date 
in accordance with: 

(i) the Australian Accounting Standards; and 

(ii) any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of chapter 8 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 ("the RO Act"). 

We declare that management's use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements 
of the Association is appropriate. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
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requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
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Independent Audit Report to the members of Screen Producers Association of 
Australia 

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditors Report Thereon 

The Committee of Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
any information that does not form part of the financial report, as defined in the Opinion section of this 
Independent Audit Report for the year ended 30 June 2024, but does not include the financial report and our 
auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Committee of Managements for the Financial Report 

The Committee of Management of the Association are responsible for the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act, and for 
such internal control as the Committee of Management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Committee of Management are responsible for assessing the 
Association's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Committee of Management either intend to 
liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Committee of Management either intend to 
liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Independent Audit Report to the members of Screen Producers Association of 
Australia 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 
financial report. 

As part of an audit In accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Association's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Committee of Management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Committee of Managements' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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Independent Audit Report to the members of Screen Producers Association of 
Australia 

We communicate with the Committee of Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

I declare that I am an auditor registered under the RO Act. 

,M. 
Daley Audit 

Stephen MlgAte 
Partner 

Wollongong 

Dated: 14 October 2024 

Registration Number (as registered under the RO Act): AA2017 /127 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 
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